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Lombard Medical Technologies (LMT) is a
specialist cardiovascular device and polymer
coatings company which focuses on discovering,
developing and commercialising innovative
products that address the unmet needs of
medical professionals across the world. LMT’s
technological expertise results in products
with competitive design advantages.

> To improve the quality of life of patients with
cardiovascular disease through the application
of sound biomedical engineering principles.

> To adhere to state-of-the-art development
programmes, good manufacturing practices
and ethical distribution policies.

> To strive for the highest reliability and quality
in our products and become recognised for
establishing improved manufacturing, testing
and clinical benchmarks.

> To treat all our employees equally and fairly,
providing an environment for individual
development and a means to share in the
Company’s success.

Our Values
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What We Do

> The Company has two operating divisions.

> The Cardiovascular Devices Division is
based in Didcot, Oxfordshire and employs
over 80 people.

> The Cardiovascular Devices Division also
has an office in Boston, MA to support the
US clinical trials for Aorfix™.

> The Polymer Coatings Division is based
in Sheffield and employs seven people.

Our Processes

Research and
Development

Manufacture Commercialisation

Research and
Development

Licensing

Cardiovascular
Devices

Polymer
Coatings

Aorfix™ is available in 21
European countries and Brazil.

Aorfix™ is sold directly to
hospitals in the UK through
LMT’s own sales force and is
available in 20 other European
countries and Brazil through a
network of local distributors that
are supported in key markets
by clinical specialists from LMT.
EndoRefix™ is the subject of a
worldwide distribution contract
with Medtronic, Inc.

Stent grafts produced using
a patented circular sewing
machine.

LMT has a small clean room
facility in Didcot in which the
delivery systems are produced
and loaded with the stent grafts
that are manufactured with
support from a sub-assembler.
EndoRefix™ is produced by
a contract manufacturer.

LMT engineers design
and manufacture novel
prototype devices.

Device ideas are evaluated for
their commercial viability before
prototypes are developed by
experienced product engineers.
These are tested and refined
using preclinical models following
which the requisite clinical trials
are performed to gain regulatory
approval in the EU and USA.

Novel polymer coatings are
licensed out after proof of
concept.
Once a concept is proven the
polymer coating is licensed out
to a company that can obtain
regulatory approval and
ultimately sell the resulting
product. The division typically
receives milestone or contract
development payments and/or
royalties on final product sales
in return for licensing out its
technology.

Scientists develop new
polymer coatings.

In the Company’s Sheffield
laboratories scientists work in
partnership with healthcare
companies and academic
institutions to develop innovative
new drug eluting coatings for
coronary stents as well as
lubricious coatings for urinary and
percutaneous transluminal
coronary angioplasty (PTCA)
catheters.
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Our Products

Current Product Portfolio Future Innovations

Current Product Portfolio Future Innovations

> LMT’s lead product is Aorfix™ an
endovascular stent graft for the treatment
of abdominal aortic aneurysms (AAAs).

> Aorfix™ has unrivalled flexibility making it
suitable for patients with high-angle-neck
aneurysms and/or tortuous iliac arteries.

> LMT’s novel endovascular stapling device,
EndoRefix™ is the subject of a strategic
collaboration with Medtronic, Inc.

> An endovascular stent graft for the treatment
of thoracic aortic aneurysms (TAAs) is in the
latter stages of design and will enter clinical
trials in 2008.

> The Polymer Coatings Division has a number
of novel coatings in development for the
$5-$6 billion drug eluting stent market.

Thoracic
Stent Graft
LMT is developing an endovascular
stent graft for TAAs using the
unique coil design and “push-rod”
technology used in Aorfix™. These
design features are expected to
cover the medical needs for: a more
flexible and conformable graft; and
an improved delivery system. The
product is in the latter stages of the
design phase and is expected to enter
clinical trials in 2008.

EndoRefix™

This patented endovascular stapling
device has multiple potential
applications including: the fixation of
migrating AAA stent grafts; anchoring
newly implanted TAA or AAA stent
grafts; securing percutaneous heart
valves; and fixation within the urinary
or gastrointestinal tracts. EndoRefix™
received European CE mark approval
in November 2006 for the fixation of
endovascular stent grafts.

Aorfix™

The unique coil design gives Aorfix™
unrivalled flexibility among
endovascular stent grafts for the
treatment of AAA. Barbs at the top of
the graft ensure good fixation whilst
pusher rods (another unique design
feature) enable accurate placement
of the graft. Trials are ongoing for use
in patients with aneurysms with neck
angles of 60° to 90°; all other stent
grafts are only labelled for use up to
60° of angulation.

Lubricious
Coatings
Lubricious coatings and hydrophilic
surface treatments are being
developed for urinary catheters and
percutaneous transluminal coronary
angioplasty (PTCA) catheters
respectively. These coatings allow
smooth passage of the catheter and
thereby reduce tissue damage and
discomfort for the patient.

Programmable
Polymer Coatings
Research programmes focus on the
$5-$6 billion market for drug eluting
stents. A joint programme combining
a proprietary drug from Amgen, Inc.
with LMT’s polymer coating is
undergoing preclinical trials for the
reduction of restenosis in coronary
artery disease at the University of
Sheffield. Another project with Axordia
Limited and the University of Sheffield
investigates the coating of coronary
stents with endothelial cells to
promote artery healing.

Citrugel

Citrugel is a hydrogel for wound care
based on natural polysaccharides,
that either donate or absorb fluid
depending on the state of the wound
to provide a moist environment to
promote rapid healing. The
formulation was developed by LMT
and licensed to Advancis Medical
Limited who manufacture and market
the product which was launched in
the UK in November 2006.

Aorfix™ Bifurcated Stent Graft
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US AAA Market Dynamics
Number of Patients

2006

52,000
57,000

33,000

63,000

165,000

180,000

Surgery Endovascular No 
intervention

2010 2006 2010 2006 2010

2006 Diagnosed 250,000
2010 Diagnosed 300,000

Our Markets

The market for endovascular stent grafts for
the treatment of AAA is currently worth around
$600 million and is forecast to increase to
nearly $1 billion by the end of the decade for
the reasons noted above.

Initial market for EndoRefix™
EndoRefix™ will be marketed by Medtronic,
Inc. under the trade name Securant™ initially
as a means of providing increased fixation for
AAA stent grafts. There are approximately
15,000 AAA stent grafts implanted each year
that may benefit in certain circumstances from
the extra fixation provided by EndoRefix™.

Endovascular Stent Grafts
Introduced in the 1990s endovascular stent
grafts provide a minimally invasive alternative
to open surgery with less risk, lower side
effects, a shorter recovery time and a reduced
overall cost. However, first generation
endovascular stent grafts had various
shortcomings that limited their adoption such
as instances of: blood leaking around the
stent graft; movement of the stent graft after
implantation (migration); and kinking or fracture
of the stent graft. Furthermore their inflexible
design made them unsuitable for various types
of anatomy.

Aorfix™ was designed to overcome these
shortcomings and in particular its flexible
design means that it is capable of treating
those patients with high-angle (60° to 90°)
neck aneurysms that are estimated to
represent 10-15% of cases and those with
highly tortuous iliac arteries (up to 30% of

The market for AAA stent grafts is expected to reach almost
$1 billion by 2010 as:

> The incidence of AAA disease increases with the aging
population and increased rates of obesity, high blood
pressure etc.

> More people with this asymptomatic disease are identified
through the increased use of screening and growing patient
awareness.

> Physicians experience the lower intra-operative mortality
rates and better quality of life outcomes provided by
endovascular repair.

> Healthcare providers recognise the lower costs and better use
of healthcare resources associated with endovascular repair.

> Patient preference supports endovascular repair.

Aortic Aneurysms – the Silent Killer
Approximately 1.7 million people have AAAs in
the USA with approximately 250,000 being
newly diagnosed with the disease each year.
People often do not know that they have AAA
disease until the aneurysm ruptures at which
point they have only a 25% chance of survival.
Ruptured AAAs account for more than 15,000
deaths in the US each year making it the 13th
largest cause of death.

Open Surgery
The treatment of AAA by open surgery has
been established for over 30 years and
still accounts for over 50% of treatments.
Although it can be used for all types
of anatomies it is often not suitable for
the elderly or those with co-morbidities.
Furthermore this highly invasive surgery that
has a 5% intra-operative mortality rate can
impact on a patient’s quality of life and
typically requires a nine day stay in hospital
following surgery and a three month recovery
period.
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Aorfix™

EndoRefix™

Thoracic

Polymer Coatings

Urology catheter coating

PTCA coating

DES – Amgen

DES – Axordia

Pipeline products also address significant markets:

> Thoracic aneurysms affect about 30,000 people annually
in the US.

> The global TAA market is growing rapidly for the same reasons
as the AAA market and has the potential to reach $1 billion
over the next five years.

> The worldwide market for drug eluting stents is worth
$5 - $6 billion and is expected to continue to grow despite
recent concerns with late-stent thrombosis.

> The worldwide PTCA balloon catheter market is worth
approximately $750 million.

> The worldwide market for intermittent urinary catheters
is worth nearly $500 million.

Product Pipeline

Cardiovascular Devices
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

1,000
900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

AAA Worldwide Sales of AAA Stent Grafts
$million

20102008200620042002

CE Mark approval
FDA approval

Preclinical
Coating development and assessment with potential partners

Out-license

Our Pipeline
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Chairman’s
Statement

2006 was a year of significant challenge and
accomplishment for the Company. Despite
having to overcome a series of challenges
during the year considerable growth has been
achieved in the European business. Aorfix™
has now been successfully implanted in over
250 patients in 18 countries, and momentum
continues to build in the pivotal US clinical trial.
The positive results from the two-year follow-
on data of Aorfix™, which showed that there
was no evidence of migration or device-related
endoleaks and aneurysm sac shrinkage
in 83% of patients, compared favourably
to competitor products.

2006 was also a tough year for the industry
generally; two major US companies temporarily
ceased their activities in the abdominal aortic
aneurysm (AAA) stent graft market due to the
limitations of their devices, one of them for
the second time. This has demonstrated the
difficulties of succeeding in such a challenging
market, even when significant resources have
been dedicated.

During 2006, the Company decided, after
discussions with Boston Scientific Inc. (Boston),
to continue with its own distribution of Aorfix™
in territories outside the USA as Boston had
decided to close their in-house activities in
endovascular AAA surgery. Despite this, the
Company understands that Boston continue to
believe that the market for AAA endovascular
surgery will grow significantly over the next ten
years. Boston currently maintains a
shareholding of 9% in the Company, along with
a right of first refusal over the Cardiovascular
Devices Division and its main assets.

Strategy
In light of the decision by Boston, the Board
assessed several alternatives for its strategy
to market and distribute Aorfix™ in Europe
and the USA, where it had been expected that
Boston would want to secure rights to Aorfix™
at the time of taking up its option.

Alistair Taylor
Executive Chairman

Recently the Company
conditionally raised £6.6 million
net of expenses through the
placing and subscription of
29.5 million shares.
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Board Change
Nigel Gray has retired as a Non-executive
Director of the Company. The Board would like
to express its appreciation for the contribution
that Nigel has made to the Company’s
progress during his tenure, and wishes him
well in his future endeavours.

Strategic Partnership
The Company was delighted to announce that
it entered a strategic partnership with Medtronic
Inc. for its EndoRefix™ endostapler device,
which Medtronic will be distributing on a
worldwide basis. EndoRefix™ will be marketed
by Medtronic under the brand name Securant™.

The terms of the agreement between
Medtronic and the Company include:

� an exclusive worldwide distribution
agreement for a period of three years,
extendable for a further two years for the
use of the device in AAA endovascular
surgery;

� co-exclusive worldwide distribution rights
for use in thoracic endovascular surgery;

� a co-exclusive licence for the use of
EndoRefix™ technology in the development
of “next generation” vascular devices,
subject to receipt of a $3 million milestone
payment to the Company due on FDA
approval of EndoRefix™, with royalty
payments of up to $5 million payable
on sales of resulting products;

� a loan facility of $3 million being made
available to the Company on effect of the
distribution agreement; and

� retention of exclusive rights to the use
of EndoRefix™ and its technology in
markets outside of vascular surgery, such
as percutaneous heart valve fixation in
cardiovascular surgery, as well as other
applications in urology and GI indications.

The Board decided that shareholders’ interests
would be best served by a strategy of:

� continuing to market Aorfix™ through a
select group of national distributors outside
the US, supported by clinical specialists in
major markets;

� progressing further the pivotal US clinical
trial for Aorfix™ before engaging a strategic
marketing partner in the US;

� investing in manufacturing capacity and
capability to meet forecast demand for
Aorfix™, so as to reduce both reliance
on external suppliers and unit costs;

� completing negotiations with Medtronic
regarding EndoRefix™;

� focusing available product development
resources on the thoracic stent graft project;

� building a portfolio of novel projects within
the Polymer Coatings Division that would
be attractive licensing candidates to other
medical device companies; and

� disposing of trade investments and
raising further equity finance to fund
implementation of this strategy.

Funding
The Company has conditionally raised
£6.6 million net of expenses through the
placing and subscription of 29.5 million shares
at an average price of 25 pence (being a 9%
discount to the average market price in the
week prior to announcement of the issue).
Warrants will be issued in a ratio of three “A”
and three “B” warrants for every 20 shares
placed or subscribed. “A” warrants allow the
holder to subscribe for an extra share at an
exercise price of 31 pence within three years of
the date of the warrant whilst “B” warrants will
allow the holder to subscribe for an extra share
at an exercise price of 37 pence within five
years of the date of the warrant.

Employees
Following the Company’s successful IPO
in 2005, the Company has recruited an
experienced tier of senior management.
The benefit of this experience along with
differing skill sets, has contributed to the
development of the Company during the
past year, and has positioned the Company
well for continuing growth.

In 2006, headquarters were opened in Boston,
USA. The team based in Boston will take the
responsibility for the driving forward the US
clinical trials, under the leadership of its
President, Peter Phillips, who was one of the
founders of the Cardiovascular Devices division.

The Board would like to express their
appreciation to all of the Company’s employees
who have made such a significant contribution
in bringing the Company successfully through
what has been a challenging but finally
successful year.

Alistair Taylor
Executive Chairman
15 June 2007

2006 Highlights
> CE mark approval granted for second generation
Aorfix™, with flexible delivery system.

> Excellent two-year follow-up data announced
for Aorfix™.

> Strategic distribution and licensing agreement
concluded with Medtronic Inc. for EndoRefix™.

> CE mark approval granted for EndoRefix™.

> Two research collaborations signed for novel
treatments for coronary restenosis.

> Experienced management team assembled.

> US office established to support US clinical trials.
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How We Are
Performing
Against
Strategic
Obectives

LMT’s objective is to become a
leading developer of innovative
solutions for the treatment of
cardiovascular and other diseases
of importance to global morbidity

To achieve significant growth in the sales
of Aorfix™.

>
Strategy Priority

1 Aorfix™ Sales Growth

To progress the US clinical trial so that a PMA
can be filed with the FDA in H1 2009.

2 Aorfix™ US Clinical Trial

To increase the Company’s manufacturing
capacity to service growing demand and
its capability in order to improve yields and
ensure that the quality of the product is of
the highest standard.

3 Manufacturing Capacity
and Capability

To progress projects in the R&D pipeline
towards registration or proof of concept
as applicable and to add new projects
as resources allow that potentially satisfy
unmet medical needs in large markets.

4 R&D Pipeline

To form value enhancing collaborations
with medical device and other healthcare
companies.

5 Business Development
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Key Performance Indicators Comment

Metrics Performance

The number of centres contracted, the
number of patients recruited and the total
number of patients left to enrol.

Reported sales revenue and implant numbers
for Aorfix™.

Increases in capacity ahead of demand,
improved yields, increased levels of finished
goods stock and an absence of supply
interruptions.

The number of regulatory approvals received
in the year and the progression of projects
towards the next milestone. Also the number
of projects in the Polymer Coatings Division
pipeline reaching proof of concept. In addition
the number and quality of new projects
entering the R&D pipeline.

Progress with the thoracic stent graft was
delayed as engineers were diverted onto
Aorfix™ production issues and it is now
expected to enter clinical trials in 2008.
A request by the FDA for more preclinical
data along with production problems with
a coating have delayed US clinical trials
for EndoRefix™ that are now expected
to commence in Q4 2007.

The number and nature of distribution,
licensing and research collaborations signed
in the year.

Recruitment levels were adversely affected
by delays negotiating centre contracts and
product shipment issues in 2006 but have
since increased. Recent FDA approvals to
use the Gen II device, increase the number
of centres, include patients with high-angle-
neck aneurysms and reduce patient numbers
will further increase recruitment rates and

Sales of Aorfix™ increased by 178% to
£469,000 (2005: £169,000) in 2006 and the
number of implants more than doubled to
105 (2005: 47). However, this growth was
below expectations due to Boston Scientific
not taking up their option to distribute the
product outside of the US and supply issues.

The recruitment and training of new staff
will increase manufacturing capacity and
capability further in 2007.

The decision by Boston Scientific not to take
up its option to distribute Aorfix™ outside
the USA had implications for the Company’s
strategy as outlined in the Chairman’s
Statement.

Production quantities increased significantly
in 2006 despite difficulties moving from a
development to a commercial organisation
that resulted in supply interruptions.

Unusually for a company of its size LMT
received European CE Mark approval for
two products during 2006: the improved
version of Aorfix™ in April and EndoRefix™
in November. Three polymer coating projects
were added to the pipeline, two in the field
of drug eluting stents and one to develop
a lubricious coating for PTCA catheters.

A strategic collaboration for EndoRefix™
was completed with Medtronic in November
2006. The Polymer Coatings Division along
with the University of Sheffield entered into
research agreements with both Amgen Inc
and Axordia Limited. The number of countries
covered by distributors for Aorfix™ was
increased during the year from 13 to 21.

Aorfix™ Sales
£’000

H1
2005

83 86

159

310

H2
2005

H1
2006

H2
2006

FDA Submission Requirements
Number of Patients

Dec 2006
Endovascular implants Open surgery controls

275

160
110

60

May 2007 Dec 2006 May 2007
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Business
Review

2006 has been a challenging year in the
Company’s history following a successful IPO
at the end of 2005. The growing acceptance
of Aorfix™ in the treatment of abdominal
aortic aneurysms (AAAs) by an increasing
number of vascular surgeons and interventional
radiologists placed the Company’s
manufacturing capacity under pressure.
Furthermore, following the decision by Boston
Scientific to withdraw from the distribution
of Aorfix™ outside the USA all commercial
activities will be undertaken by LMT for the
foreseeable future. Despite these set-backs,
the commercialisation of Aorfix™ in Europe
has been encouraging with the product now
available in 21 European countries and
continuing to gain support among surgeons
following the publication of excellent two-year
follow-up data. The US clinical trial is also
progressing well following the establishment
of a US subsidiary to oversee the trial.

Growing Clinical Endorsement of Aorfix™
The number of successful implants of Aorfix™
grew from 47 in 2005 to 105 undertaken in
2006 despite the product being off the market
in December and local distributor concerns
about Boston Scientific’s intentions prior to late
August. At the Cardiology and Interventional
Radiology Society of Europe (CIRSE) congress
in September 2006 in Rome, two-year follow-
up data were presented on patients with
straightforward and angulated anatomy. These
data confirmed that the grafts were maintained
in situ in patients with no evidence of migration
or device-related endoleaks. In addition 83% of
patients showed a shrinkage of the aneurysm
sac. It is encouraging that this proportion of
patients had shown a positive result at this
mid-term follow-up point. This demonstrates
that the unique features of the Aorfix™ stent
graft in terms of its flexibility and conformability
to most types of vasculature quickly gains
control and reduces pressure in the aneurysm
sac. The initial two endovascular cases in the
US trial of the device showed similar sac
shrinkage at six months. To date there have
been over 250 implants of Aorfix™ spread
throughout 15 European countries, Australia,

Brian Howlett
Chief Executive Officer

Aorfix™ two-year follow-up data
showed no evidence of migration
or device-related endoleaks and
83% of patients experienced
shrinkage of the aneurysm sac.
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Brazil and the USA. In April 2006 the Company
also received a CE Mark for the improved
version of Aorfix™ that is much preferred by
physicians due to the smaller diameter and
greater flexibility of the delivery device which
has improved access through tortuous iliac
arteries. Enhancements to the graft also
include electropolished wire to improve
corrosion resistance and better visibility under
X-ray. An increase in shelf-life for the improved
version of Aorfix™ to two years was welcomed
by the Company’s distributors.

Successful Commercialisation of Aorfix™
During 2006, the sales force has been rebuilt
and extended to include support for a growing
network of leading distributors in the major
markets in continental Europe, especially
Germany, Italy, France and Spain.

There are now six trained clinical proctors from
the Company and leading vascular surgery
centres in the UK, the Netherlands, Czech
Republic and Greece; who will support the
rapid adoption of Aorfix™ in Europe and
elsewhere through 2007 and beyond. During
2007 more seminars are planned to train
additional clinical proctors who will support
the next wave of new Aorfix™ centres adopting
the technology from 2008.

The Company markets its Aorfix™ stent graft
directly through its own sales force in the UK
and through distributors in other countries.
The Company now has distributors operating
in 20 European countries plus Brazil.

The publication of an abstract in the Vascular
journal by Jean-Noel Albertini, MD et al, of the
Vascular Surgery Department, Hospital Robert
Debre, Reims, France, which concluded that
the Company’s Aorfix™ stent graft was the
only device which did not develop endoleaks,
regardless of the angulation of the neck of the
abdominal aorta, was extremely gratifying.
There is now a growing body of evidence to
suggest that Aorfix™ is the only stent graft that
can successfully treat AAAs with severely
angulated necks.

Stent grafts are dispatched from
stock or made to order if not a
standard size. Uniquely a circular
sewing machine is used in their
manufacture providing time
savings and quality advantages
over hand sewing.

Grafts are made using a
patented circular sewing
machine.

Aorfix™ with its flexible design
has increased the proportion of
patients for which endovascular
repair is an option. Measurements
taken from images to size the
graft are checked by LMT prior
to acceptance of an order.

Images are used to assess
and measure the aneurysm.

AAA patients often have no
symptoms until the aneurysm
ruptures at which point 65% will
die before arriving at hospital.
Screening to identify AAAs prior
to rupture has been introduced
in the USA and parts of Europe.

Increased screening helps to
identify AAA disease.

The unrivalled
flexibility of Aorfix™
gives AAA patients
with tortuous
anatomies an
alternative to
open surgery.

Aorfix™ Implants

123%
Increase in Aorfix™ implants

to 105 (2005: 47)

Patients recover from an
endovascular procedure such as
one using Aorfix™ around a week
after returning home from
hospital whereas recovery from
open surgery typically takes
around three months.

Functionality is restored just
one week after returning home.

Open surgery AAA repair requires
post-operative hospitalisation for
about nine days. Endovascular
procedures typically require a
three-day stay in hospital freeing
up scarce healthcare resources
and saving costs.

Hospital recovery time is cut
with endovascular procedures.

Implantation of Aorfix™ is a
minimally invasive procedure
only requiring local anaesthetic
and without the scarring and
intra-operative mortality (5%)
associated with open surgery.

Aorfix™ is implanted under
a local anaesthetic.

Aorfix™ was the only
device which did not
develop endoleaks,
regardless of the
neck angulation.
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DES reduce the inflammatory
response but slow the healing
process causing blood clots
(thrombosis). By secreting cells
to promote the rapid healing of
the artery wall this new approach
aims to prevent both restenosis
and late-stent thrombosis.

3 Drug eluting stents (DES)
reduce restenosis but can
cause late-stent thrombosis

A tiny mesh tube called a stent
is threaded through blood vessels
up to the narrowed artery where
it is expanded. This widens but
damages the artery causing an
inflammatory response that may
lead to a re-narrowing of the
artery (restenosis).

2 The market for coronary
stents is worth $5-6 billion

CAD occurs when the coronary
arteries supplying the heart
muscle harden and narrow due
to the build up of plaque
(atherosclerosis). This reduces
the supply of oxygen to the heart
resulting in possible angina or
heart attack.

1 Coronary artery disease
(“CAD”) is the leading cause
of death in the USA

Polymer Coatings
Pipeline

A novel regenerative
coronary stent
programme in
collaboration with
Axordia Limited
and the University of
Sheffield potentially
accelerates the
healing of damaged
arteries.

During this time, the Company worked
closely with leading clinicians and regulatory
authorities in the UK and Germany to keep
them informed of the clinical experience in
2006 and the manufacturing changes made.
Further improvements have been identified
and are being incorporated into manufacturing
through 2007.

To have identified and solved the problem
of the delivery system within seven weeks
demonstrated the dedication of the
management and staff involved and was
extremely gratifying. The recommencement
of clinical procedures in January 2007 was
good news for those patients with difficult
anatomies for which Aorfix™ is the only
endovascular option.

During the course of the year a team of
production and quality engineers have been
assembled to deal with the requirement for
rapid growth in production capacity. A highly
experienced QA/QC director David Clennell
has been appointed from a senior position
within Johnson & Johnson and he joined the
Company in early 2007. The regulatory team
has also been strengthened in 2006 by the
appointment of Jan Champion as Director of
International Regulatory Affairs from a senior
position in the Cardiovascular Division of

Meeting the Growing Demand for Aorfix™
Production capacity increased three fold
during the year as the Company moved to
a continental shift pattern and changes were
made to working practices. However, the
Company was unable to fulfil all the demands
from its distributors and customers. Changes
made to the manufacturing processes to
increase mid-term capacity actually hindered
the ability to meet short-term demand as
operator and management time was diverted
onto training new staff and improving the
efficiency of various processes. Furthermore,
clinical procedures were voluntarily suspended
between 11 December 2006 and 30 January
2007. This voluntary suspension of European
clinical procedures involving the Aorfix™
Generation II endovascular stent graft was
a precautionary measure implemented by
the Company following the discovery of a
problem with the placement of the graft in
eight procedures.

Following thorough analysis of intra-operative
X-ray files and extensive laboratory testing,
the cause of the inaccuracy was isolated to a
manufacturing step in which the stent graft is
loaded into its delivery tube. The manufacturing
process was adjusted and intensively tested
prior to the product being released back into
the market.

Coronary artery
supplying blood to the
heart muscles.

Coronary stent
introduced to widen the
artery after the build-up
of plaque.

Endothelial cells lining
the stent secrete factors
that prevent immune
response, reduce
inflammation, and
induce vascular repair.

Plaque build up causes
a hardening and
narrowing of the artery.

The quality and
regulatory teams
have been
strengthened by
the recruitment of
experienced senior
managers.

Revenue

206%
Increase in revenue to £517,000

(2005: £169,000)

Proprietary polymer
coating can store
and release a variety
of compounds.

Endothelial cells grown
from a single stem cell
line coat the surface.
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in April 2007. The second, to allow the trial to
move to 20 centres and recruit patients with
aneurysms with neck angulations from 0°
to 90° was submitted in April 2007 with
conditional approval received in May 2007.
This supplemental IDE also requested a
reduction in the number of patients for whom
data are to be submitted from 385 to 220
based on new statistical analysis.

Clinical investigators are particularly interested
to use Aorfix™ in those patients with
aneurysms with neck angulations of 60° to 90°
for which there is no approved alternative
endovascular stent graft.

Further potential supplemental IDE submissions
for the study of Aorfix™ in other AAA sectors
with a high medical need are currently being
considered.

There are currently 12 centres screening for
patients of which nine have contributed and
there have been 13 Aorfix™ implants and 19
open surgery control procedures performed.

As the trial requires patients to be followed
up for a period of twelve months following
implantation of the device the Company
does not expect to file a PMA for Aorfix™
until H1 2009.

Building the Leadership Team for Future
Revenue and Profit Growth
During the year the Company has increased
and developed the depth and breadth of its
management team in the key areas of sales
and marketing, quality, production, finance
and human resources. The leadership team
is now in place to drive sales and profit growth
from the unique attributes of Aorfix™ in the
treatment of AAAs. Arising from an ageing
population and growing incidence of high blood
pressure and obesity, and better screening,
diagnosis in the US alone is expected to reach
300,000 per annum, by 2010. The worldwide
market for endovascular treatment of this
condition is expected to be $1 billion by the
end of the decade.

Medtronic Inc. Based in the USA, Jan’s
principal responsibilities include completion of
recruitment into the pivotal Aorfix™ US clinical
trial by H1 2008 and full PMA approval by the
end of 2009.

Focus on the US Market
Recognising the importance of the US market
in successfully commercialising Aorfix™,
the Company set up a subsidiary operation
in Boston, MA led by Peter Phillips, a
co-developer of Aorfix™. The US operation
has an experienced clinical and regulatory
team and the resources to achieve regulatory
approval of Aorfix™ in the US.

US Aorfix™ Clinical Trial
Following receipt of the IDE from the FDA,
the Company began the process of contracting
clinical centres for its pivotal US clinical trial
of the Aorfix™ endovascular stent graft in
the treatment of AAAs in Q1 2006 and the
first implant was performed in April 2006.
Despite delays in the negotiation of clinical
contracts and product shipment issues
during parts of 2006, the trial is now gaining
momentum through the efforts of the new US
office and Director of International Regulatory
Affairs. Furthermore, a series of supplemental
IDE submissions has been designed to improve
patient recruitment rates. The first of these,
to allow LMT to use the improved version of
Aorfix™ launched in Europe in April 2006,
was filed in March 2007 and was approved

Pipeline Product Developments
Endostapler
In November 2006 the Company achieved
CE Mark approval for the EndoRefix™ stapling
device for the secure fixation of first generation
endovascular stent grafts used in the treatment
of AAAs.

EndoRefix™ was recognised as best in class
in the Innovation Showcase session at the
29th Charing Cross Endovascular Symposium
in April 2006, London, England partly as a
result of its many different potential applications
including the fixation of thoracic aortic
aneurysm (TAA) stent grafts, percutaneous
heart valve fixation and uses in urinary or
gastro-intestinal surgery.

Thoracic Stent Graft
The Company has an endovascular stent graft
for thoracic aortic aneurysms (TAAs) in the
latter stages of design with pre-clinical trials
expected to start this year and clinical trials in
second half of 2008. LMT’s medical advisers
are encouraged that this more comformable
and flexible graft and delivery system will cover
a large unmet clinical need for a wider choice
of endovascular approaches to the treatment
of aneurismal disease in the thoracic aorta.

Work on this project and the development of
a low profile, truly percutaneous approach to
the treatment of AAAs was delayed in 2006,
because the engineering team was prioritised
towards the commercialisation of Aorfix™
and EndoRefix™.

In 2006 the Company
achieved two CE
Mark approvals.

Aorfix™ 24 Month Clinical Trial Data
(relating to 18 procedures unless
otherwise stated)

> Cumulative survival probability

> Freedom from AAA-related mortality

> Freedom from rupture

> Device related treatments since last procedure

> Device related clinical events

> Change in aneurysm diameter:
– Decrease
– No change

> Freedom from migration

> Freedom from fracture

> Patency

> Freedom from device-related endoleak

24 MONTHS

86% (21 procedures)

100%

100%

0

0

83.33%
16.67%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Aorfix™ implants have continued to show
extremely encouraging clinical performance
in the short and medium-term data, collected
and published. Confirmation of freedom from
Type 1 endoleaks, no stent graft migration and
aneurysm sac shrinkage was presented
in 12 month and 24 month follow-up data
presented at two major international
congresses, 29th Charing Cross Endovascular
Symposium in April 2006 and CIRSE in Rome
during September 2006.

The Company has an exciting pipeline of other
products addressing unmet clinical needs in
aneurismal disease of the thoracic aorta and
coronary vessel disease where its emerging
technologies create a platform for a family
of second generation drug eluting stents.
Endorsement of the potential of all its
technologies is apparent from the important
partnerships signed with leading companies
such as Medtronic and Amgen in 2006.

Outlook
At the 30th Charing Cross Endovascular
Symposium in April 2007 there was a growing
acceptance amongst clinicians that Aorfix™
was at least as good if not better than existing
endovascular stent grafts in AAA repair.
This added to the product’s unique ability
to treat those patients with highly tortuous
anatomies augers well for the future.

Brian Howlett
Chief Executive Officer
15 June 2007

Polymer Coatings Division
The Polymer Coatings Division’s work in
developing a second generation Drug Eluting
Stent (DES) technology platform has shown
significant progress in 2006. A consortium
with Axordia and the University of Sheffield
has commenced work on a regenerative stent
research programme using endothelial cells
grown from a single stem cell line. This novel
combination with the Group’s programmable
polymer coating would potentially accelerate
the healing process of the vessel in which
the stent is placed, thus avoiding late-stent
thrombosis reported recently in first generation
coated stents.

This research programme was awarded
£0.9 million of funding from the Department
of Trade and Industry (DTI) and the Medical
Research Council (MRC). A research
collaboration has also commenced to
develop a new drug and drug eluting polymer
combination for the treatment of coronary
stent restenosis. In this case the research
partner is Amgen, and programme relates to
the delivery of a proprietary anti-inflammatory
drug to the wall of the coronary vessel.

2006 Highlights
The Company has risen to the major challenges
associated with the change of strategy and
business model necessitated by the withdrawal
of Boston from exercising its option to distribute
Aorfix™ outside US markets.

A senior management team with the
experience and talent to take the Company’s
potentially world-beating technologies to
maximum sales revenue and earnings has
been assembled.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

CSR issues can be grouped into the following
key areas that have potential for significant
effect on LMT’s value:

� Social – recognising the value of employees
and managing the business ethically;

� Ethical – investing in research and
development and other activities with
the aim of establishing a sustainable
business that will provide a fair return
for shareholders; and

� HS&E – ensuring the health and safety
of people and limiting the environmental
impact of the business.

Social
LMT is committed to conducting all aspects
of its business in a socially responsible manner.
In particular the welfare and development of
the Group’s employees remain a priority. In
order to attract, recruit, develop and retain
key employees, LMT maintains a number of
policies and procedures for the benefit of its
employees. These are set out in an employee
handbook given to all new employees and
include such items as an equal opportunities
policy; training policy; and anti-harassment
policy. Employee development is encouraged
through appropriate training.

Regular and open communication between
management and employees is considered
to be essential to maintain a motivated
workforce. LMT regularly holds briefings at
which updates are provided on the Company’s
progress and employees have the opportunity
to ask questions and discuss issues with
senior management. Company news is
also communicated via notice boards
and significant items are included on the
Company’s website which is freely available
with most employees having access to the
internet.

Employee feedback is encouraged via line
management and review meetings are held
regularly within each department.

The Board recognises the importance of
corporate governance in building a sustainable
business. This includes recognition by the
Company of the importance of taking into
account its corporate social responsibilities
(CSR) in operating the business. In this context,
Lombard Medical Technologies (LMT) seeks
to integrate CSR considerations relating
particularly to social, ethical and health, safety
and environment (HS&E) issues in its day-to-
day operations. The Board acknowledges its
duty to ensure that the Company conducts its
activities responsibly and with proper regard
for all its stakeholders including employees,
shareholders, customers, patients, suppliers,
business partners and the local and medical
communities.

In exercising its CSR, LMT seeks to ensure
that:

� as a minimum, the Group meets existing
standards and legislation;

� HS&E issues are treated as critical areas of
concern for the business;

� business practices are managed ethically;
� employees are recognised as key to the

success of the business and individual
talent is valued and developed;

� business practices are managed
transparently and designed to deliver value
to the stakeholders;

� a positive contribution is made to the local
and medical communities; and

� the Board takes account of the significance
of social, ethical and HS&E matters.

Ethical
LMT operates within a strict regulatory
environment and conducts its research and
development, and manufacturing activities in
accordance with internationally recognised
regulatory standards. Similarly its sales and
marketing activities are conducted in line with
industry guidelines.

The Company manages its resources prudently
to ensure that appropriate investment is made
in its R&D programmes and its manufacturing
and commercialisation activities. The Group’s
intellectual property is protected through an
appropriate patenting programme and
up-to-date security systems are used to
protect the Company’s IT systems. Close
attention is paid to maintaining relationships
with key stakeholders including business
partners, suppliers and shareholders.

Health, Safety and Environment
LMT regards the promotion of health and safety
as an essential part of management and
employer responsibilities. The basis of its
approach in these areas is one of continuous
improvement of appropriate health and safety
policies and procedures to ensure the
safeguard of staff, contractors and visitors.
LMT is committed to complying with applicable
health and safety laws and regulations.

LMT believes in protecting the environment.
When developing products and manufacturing
processes, regard is given to the protection
of the environment particularly with regard to
waste management and utility consumption.
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Finance
Director’s
Report

Revenue
Total revenue increased more than three fold
to £517,000 (2005: £169,000) of which
£44,000 related to contract development
work performed at our Polymer Coatings
Division (2005: £nil). Sales of Aorfix™,
although adversely impacted by the voluntary
suspension of clinical procedures in December
and the subsequent issue of credit notes for
returned stock, grew by 178% to £469,000
(2005: £169,000).

Gross Profit
Gross profit for the year increased 30% to
£107,000 (2005: £82,000). The gross margin
of 20.7% (2005: 48.5%) was negatively
impacted by the issue of credit notes and
write-off of returned stock arising from the
voluntary suspension of clinical procedures
in December.

Operating Expenses
The Group’s operating expenses increased
by £1.6 million to £11.7 million (2005:
£10.1 million). A ramp-up in sales and
marketing activities accounted for £1.0 million
of the increase as selling, marketing and
distribution expenses increased to £1.9 million
(2005: £0.9 million).

The Company’s investment in R&D increased
to £4.8 million in 2006 (2005: £3.2 million)
reflecting higher costs associated with the
commencement of the pivotal US clinical
trial for Aorfix™, headcount increases and
increased product development costs on
EndoRefix™ and the Gen II Aorfix™ device
both of which received CE mark approval in
Europe during 2006.

The increases in selling, marketing and
distribution, and R&D expenses were
partially offset by a reduction in general and
administrative expenses of £0.9 million to
£5.1 million (2005: £6.0 million). The decrease
in general and administrative expenses mainly
arose from the absence of exceptional items
in 2006 (2005: £1.8 million), partially offset
by a £0.5 million increase in share-based
compensation expense to £0.7 million
(2005: £0.2 million) relating to the issue of
share options in the last quarter of 2005, plus
a £0.3 million increase in legal and professional
fees partly due to the Company’s transition to
a public company in December 2005.

Interest Receivable
Interest receivable increased to £569,000
(2005: £49,000) as a result of increased money
deposits arising from the proceeds from the
Company’s IPO in December 2005.

Interest Payable
Interest payable decreased to £6,000
(2005: £1,998,000) following the conversion
of outstanding preference shares into ordinary
shares in December 2005 and the repayment
of outstanding loans with the proceeds from
the Company’s IPO also in December 2005.

Tim Hall
Finance Director

Total revenue increased more
than threefold to £517,000
(2005: £169,000).

The loss for the year
decreased 13% to £10.4 million
(2005: £12.0 million).
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In 2005, the Company successfully raised a
total of £30.9 million before expenses of which
£3.1 million came from an issue of convertible
preference shares (subsequently converted
to ordinary shares and deferred shares),
£1.6 million from an issue of ordinary shares
to Camden Partners at the time of the flotation
and £26.2 million on flotation through the
placing of 16.5 million ordinary shares with a
group of leading UK and European institutions
at a price of 159 pence per share. Expenses
related to these share issues totalled
£2.7 million.

Following flotation, loans and overdrafts
totalling £6 million were repaid.

Treasury
The Company’s policy is to invest surplus
funds in money-market and short-term bank
deposits. The Company seeks to maximise
returns whilst at the same time safeguarding
the principal by only placing deposits through
institutions with good credit ratings.

As at December 2006 LMT had cash and
short-term deposits of £4.4 million (2005:
£16.3 million).

Loss Per Share
The net loss per share decreased by 86% to
21.0 pence (2005: 151.2 pence) principally as
a result of an increase in the average number of
shares in issue to 49.7 million (2005: 7.9 million).

Headcount
Headcount at 31 December 2006 was 90
(2005: 49) with the increase of 41 coming from:
manufacturing (+22); R&D (+11); sales and
marketing (+7) and finance (+1).

International Financial Reporting Standards
The Company’s first financial report adopting
IFRS will be the 2007 interim accounts.
A brief review of the affect of adopting IFRS
has highlighted the impairment testing rather
than amortisation of goodwill as the only item
likely to have a material impact on the Group’s
reported losses. In 2006 the goodwill
amortisation charged to the profit and loss
account was £1.3 million.

Post Balance Sheet Events.
On 22 February 2007 EndoArt SA was
acquired by Allergan Inc. for $97 million,
net of excess cash. The Group’s share of the
consideration is $3.15 million of which the
Group received $2.75 million (£1.4 million)
on 23 February 2007 with the remaining
$0.40 million being held in escrow until
February 2009 pending any potential warranty
claims made by Allergan under the terms
of the purchase agreement. The Group’s
shareholding had been acquired for a total
cost of £1.1 million but impairment charges
had reduced the book value to £0.3 million
as a result of which the Group will record a
profit of £1.1 million from the sale in 2007.

Taxation
The R&D tax credits recoverable are only
recorded on receipt of confirmation of a claim.
In 2006 £0.2 million was received in respect of
a claim for 2004 and confirmation of a claim
of £0.4 million in respect of 2005 was received
giving a total tax credit in the 2006 accounts
of £0.6 million (2005: £nil).

Loss for the Financial Year
The loss for the financial year decreased by
13% to £10.4 million (2005: £12.0 million).
The decrease of £1.6 million was principally
due to higher interest receivable, lower interest
payable and the receipt of R&D tax credits
partly offset by higher operating expenses.

Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment
Capital expenditure and financial investments
in the year decreased to £0.3 million (2005:
£0.7 million). The 2006 outflow relates wholly to
capital expenditure (2005: £0.1 million) whereas
the 2005 outflow included a £0.2 million
investment in EndoArt SA and the purchase
of various patents and intellectual property
relating to Aorfix™ from Pearsalls Sutures
for £0.4 million.

Acquisitions and Disposals
On 28 February 2006 at an Extraordinary
General Meeting of LMT’s 94.4% owned
subsidiary Lombard Medical Plc, a special
resolution was passed for the Company to be
voluntarily wound up. Lombard Medical Plc
had not traded since September 2004 when
its business and assets were sold to LMT for
£25.1 million. The consideration was satisfied
by way of an intra-group loan that became
repayable on demand following LMT’s flotation.
A members’ voluntary liquidation of Lombard
Medical Plc was considered the most cost-
effective method of distributing the minority
shareholders’ interest in this loan. Pursuant to
which a payment of £2.0 million was made to
the liquidators of Lombard Medical Plc for the
distribution to the minority shareholders and
related expenses.

Operating Cash Flow
Net cash outflow before financing for the year
rose by £3.5 million to £12.1 million (2005:
£8.6 million) primarily due to: the increased
operating loss; increases in the working capital
requirement; and, the payment arising from
the distribution to the minority shareholders
of Lombard Medical Plc; partially offset by,
increases in non-cash charges; greater cash
flows from returns on investments and
servicing of finance; and reduced expenditure
on fixed assets and investments.

Financing
In 2006 the net cash inflows from financing of
£0.1 million (2005: £25.4 million) related wholly
to the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise
of share options.

The Company has conditionally raised £6.6
million net of expenses of £0.8 million from the
placement and subscription of 29.5 million
ordinary shares at a price of 25 pence per
share. “A” and “B” warrants will be issued in
a ratio of three “A" and three “B” warrants for
every 20 shares placed or subscribed. “A”
warrants allow the holder to subscribe for an
extra share at an exercise price of 31 pence
within three years of the date of the warrant
whilst “B” warrants will allow the holder to
subscribe for an extra share at an excerise
price of 37 pence within five years of the date
of the warrant. The issue of these shares and
warrants is subject to shareholder approval at
the Extraordinary General Meeting to be held
on 9 July 2007.

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the grounds that
the Directors believe that the shareholders will
approve the share issues noted above required
to fund the Company for the foreseeable future.
However, for the Company to be able to
continue with its current business plan and in
the absence of proceeds from the sale of its
remaining trade investment, the Company will
need to raise further funds in the next twelve
months in order to take the business to the
point where it becomes cash generative.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have drawn
attention to these assumptions in their audit
report on page 30 and further information is
given on the basis on which the accounts have
been prepared in note 1 to the financial
statements.

Tim Hall
Finance Director
15 June 2007

Finance Director’s Report
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1 Alistair Taylor
Executive Chairman
Alistair (65) was appointed to the Board in
2000. He has ten years’ experience in the
pharmaceutical industry and over 27 years’
experience in medical devices, mainly in
interventional cardiology and radiology, and
vascular and cardiovascular surgery. He was
Chief Executive Officer of Biocompatibles
International plc from July 1994 to February
1998. During this period the company
progressed from a technology-based start
up company, through flotation to a FTSE 250
company. Prior to this Alistair was Chief
Executive Officer of Schneider Inc, a Swiss
interventional cardiology/radiology device
company. During this time the company’s
turnover grew to $100 million. Schneider was
subsequently sold by Pfizer Inc., its parent for
over $2 billion.

2 Brian Howlett
Chief Executive Officer
Brian (63) was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Prior to joining LMT, Brian
was General Manager of Boston Scientific Ltd
for six years. During this period the company
became the leading subsidiary in Europe by
sales and profits, and introduced a number of
medical devices within the UK market which
experienced rapid adoption. Brian has over
20 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical
industry, having served as Managing Director
and Business Development Director of Cobe
Laboratories Ltd. He has a strong sales and
marketing background gained through a
number of senior sales and marketing positions
with Fisons PLC.

3 Tim Hall
Finance Director
Tim (45) joined the Board in November 2005.
He is a chartered accountant with extensive
senior financial management experience gained
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining
LMT, Tim served as Chief Financial Officer at
Celltech Pharmaceuticals for over four years
during which time he helped refocus the
business by managing both a strategic product
acquisition and company acquisition. He also
served as Director of Strategic Planning at
Medeva PLC and has held senior financial
planning positions at Glaxo-Wellcome plc and
Wellcome plc as well as Medeva PLC. Tim
started his career at Touche Ross & Co before
moving to Wellcome plc where he held a
number of head office finance positions.

4 Richard Johnston
Non-executive Director
Richard (72) was appointed to the Board in
2003 and is Chairman of the Audit Committee.
He is a partner of Camden Partners Holdings
LLC, where he focuses on investments in the
health care and business services sectors.
Richard has over 40 years of investment
experience and serves on the boards of
Atricure, Inc, COHR Inc., Medivance Inc.,
Pharmanetics, Inc., and Webmedix Inc.,
all of which are Camden Partners’ portfolio
companies. Previously, Richard was Vice
President of Investments and a director of
The Hillman Company, an investment holding
company with diversified operations, where he
was employed from 1961 to 2000. From June
1970 he was responsible for deal origination
and investor representative relations with
numerous private equity financings, including
HBO, Medical Care International and Rehab
Services among many others in health care.
Richard also managed marketable securities
portfolios for Hillman entities, including small
cap-portfolios, and originated and/or monitored
limited partnership holdings in numerous
private equity funds. He has been an adviser
to several private equity funds, including Bridge
Capital, Health Care Capital Partners and
T. Rowe Price Threshold Funds.

5 Professor Martin
Rothman
Independent
Non-executive Director
Martin (59) was appointed to the Board on
11 July 2003 having been appointed to the
board of Lombard Medical Plc in 2000. Martin
is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
He is a consultant cardiologist and cardiac
research and development director at Barts
and the London NHS Trust. He is also honorary
senior lecturer to the Medical College of St
Mary Westfield, University of London and
lectures regularly in cardiology and related
subjects. He travels worldwide to give lectures
and demonstrations to professional audiences
in Cardiology and the use of Cardiology
devices. Martin is a Fellow of the American
College of Cardiology, a Fellow of the Royal
College of Physicians and Fellow of the
European College of Cardiology. Martin has
founded medical device companies and has
experience as a managing director raising
capital and obtaining regulatory approvals as
well as establishing marketing and distribution
functions.

6 Michael Stevens
Senior Independent
Non-executive Director
Michael (62) joined the Board in December
2005 and is Chairman of the Nominations
Committee. Until his retirement in July 2005,
Michael was Executive Vice President, Staff
Executive at GE Healthcare. This involved
membership of the company’s Executive
Leadership Team. For over four years until GE
Healthcare acquired Amersham plc in April
2004, Michael was Corporate Development
Director of Amersham, having responsibility for
strategic planning co-ordination, corporate level
M&A activity and research and development
portfolio analysis. Prior to joining Amersham he
held senior positions at major pharmaceutical
companies such as Gedeon Richter in
Hungary, Wellcome plc and the Syntex
Corporation in California. Michael is a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and has also studied at INSEAD
business school in France.

Board of Directors
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Senior Management

1
2 3

3 Rhod Jones
Company Secretary

Rhod (60) is a chartered accountant and was
appointed Company Secretary and Group
Financial Controller in 2001. Prior to this
appointment he held a similar position for nine
years in a growing leisure group during which
the group was floated on the AIM market
before being acquired. Overall he has 25 years’
company secretarial and senior financial
management experience in a number of quoted
companies, in the property, leisure, and metal
and plastic finishing industries. Prior to this he
was in the profession rising through audit to
investigations manager before entering
commerce.

2 Kadem Al-Lamee
Managing Director,
Polymer Coatings Division
Kadem (56) was co-founder of PolyBioMed
Limited in 1996, serving as Technical Director
before becoming Managing Director in 2001.
He has been integral to the development of
the business throughout its history, including
strategic development, fund raising, technical
development and the establishment of its
intellectual property portfolio. Prior to
establishing PolyBioMed, Kadem was Principal
Scientist in polymer chemistry for Innovative
Technologies plc, managing development
programmes with Amorphous Hydrogels, as
wound dressings and coated urinary catheters.
He has an MSc and PhD in Polymer Chemistry
and extensive post-doctoral experience at the
University of Liverpool and the University of
Basrah involving a number of collaborations
with major medical devices and biotechnology
companies.

1 Peter Phillips
Managing Director,
Cardiovascular Devices Division
Peter (48) took Anson Medical Limited from
concept to commercial reality in 1997 and,
with Professor Brian Hopkinson, designed
the Aorfix™ stent graft. Before the
commercialisation of Anson Medical Limited,
Peter ensured that the design concepts were
protected by patents, providing the basis for
the Cardiovascular Devices Division’s current
portfolio. Prior to Anson Medical Limited, Peter
was New Products Director at Surgicraft, an
orthopaedics company. Prior to that he was
a consultant to the diagnostics industry for six
years, while working for Scientific Generics
and Cambridge Consultants. He has an MSc
in medical physics and a PhD in vascular
imaging from Guy’s Hospital, London.
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2006

The Directors present their report and
the audited financial statements of the
Company and Group for the year ended
31 December 2006.

Business Review

Business Review and Principal Activities
The Company’s principal activities are set out
on page 2.

The Company’s products, markets and product
pipeline are set out on pages 3-5.

Achievements during the year under review are
set out on pages 6 and 7.

The results for the Group show a pre-tax loss
of £11.1 million (2005: £12.0 million) for the year
and sales of £517,000 (2005: £169,000). Net
cash outflow from operating activities for 2006
was £10.5 million (2005: £7.6 million). Detailed
consideration of the results is contained within
the Finance Director’s Report starting on
page 16.

Business Environment
The markets in which the Company operates
are described on page 4 and further comments
on the business environment are given in the
Chairman’s Statement starting on page 6.

Details of product pipelines are included on
page 5.

Strategy
The Company’s strategy is outlined in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 and 7.

Product Range
The product range is detailed on page 3.

Research and Development
During the year the Group expended £4.8m
(2005: £3.2m) in continuing development of its
product portfolio.

Staff
The Company has consistently sought to
recruit and retain the best employees.

In order to ensure that employees are fully
conversant with both manufacturing techniques
and industry standards, in house training
courses are held at regular intervals. Other
more specific training is achieved by sending
employees on external training courses.

To retain employees a benefits package
encompassing death in service, long-term
disability and medical insurance together with
a contributory pension scheme is offered to
all employees.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The management of the business and the
execution of the Group’s strategy are subject
to a number of risks and uncertainties.

The Board has implemented processes to
identify risks, to assess them and to ensure
that reasonable mitigation plans are in place.
The principal risks and uncertainties identified
that could have a material impact on the
Company are set out below.

Manufacturing – the Company has encountered
a number of problems in scaling-up the
production of its lead product Aorfix™.
To address these issues the Company has
appointed experienced managers in a number
of key areas and set up project teams to review
and improve certain production processes in
conjunction with external consultants where
necessary. Despite these initiatives there
remains a risk that the Company will not be
able to scale-up its manufacturing capacity in
line with demand. Also, as with any medical
device company manufacturing complex
products in a highly regulated environment,
there is the risk that issues may arise that lead
to the temporary withdrawal of the product
from the market.

Sole Suppliers – the Company is currently
dependent upon a number of sole suppliers
of key components that, if no longer able to
supply, could adversely affect the manufacture
of the Company’s products. The Company
seeks to mitigate this risk by holding higher
stocks of key components and finding second
sources of supply where possible.

Development and Regulatory Approval
Timelines – the assumptions made on such
timelines are of their nature subject to
uncertainties. Development timelines can
be adversely impacted by the need to
divert resources to other areas such as
manufacturing or unforeseen problems arising
in the development of products. Regulatory
approval timelines can be affected by a number
of factors such as trial recruitment rates, clinical
results and changes to regulatory requirements.

Market Competitors – although the Company
believes that its products have design features
that make them competitive against the known
competition, a new competitor product may be
brought to the market that is more effective or
economically viable than that developed by the
Company. The Company monitors market
developments, as far as possible, in order to
take account of competitor advances in its
design of new products.
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Financial Resources – the funds available to
the Company including the proceeds from the
shares conditionally placed and subscribed are
not expected to take the Company through to
profitability. The Company will, therefore, need
to raise further funds either through the issue
of equity or debt in order to fulfil its strategy.
The ability to raise such funds are not certain
and will depend upon the Company’s
performance against its stated objectives
and market conditions prevailing at that time.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)
The KPIs are more fully dealt with in the
Strategy Progress Statement on page 8.

In summary the KPIs are:

Aorfix™ Sales Growth – reported sales growth
and implant numbers for Aorfix™;

Aorfix™ US Clinical Trial – number of centres
contracted, number of patients recruited and
total number of patients to enrol;

Manufacturing Capacity and Capability –
increases in capacity ahead of demand,
improved yields, increased levels of finished
goods stock and absence of supply
interruptions;

R&D Pipeline – the number of regulatory
approvals received in the year and the
progression of projects towards the next
milestone. Also the number and quality of new
projects entering the R&D pipeline; and

Business Development – the number and
nature of distribution, licensing and research
collaborations signed in the year.

Political and Charitable Donations
The Group made no political or charitable
donations during the period. (2005: £nil)

Directors
Details of the Directors are set out on page 19.

Mr Gray resigned on 9 January 2007.

Mr Hall and Mr Rothman will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors’ interests in the share
capital of the Company are shown in the
Remuneration Report on page 27.

No Director had an interest in a contract with
the Group during the period under review.

Corporate and Social Responsibility

Environment
The Group is committed to complying with
environmental legislation and minimising the
impact of its activities on the environment.
The Group considers that its activities have
low environmental impact.

Financial Risk Management
Details of the Group’s policies are included
in note 17 to the financial statements.

Health and Safety
The Group has established a Health and Safety
Committee to review health and safety
standards within the Group on an ongoing
basis.

Policies and procedures are documented.

Payment Policy
It is the Group’s policy to agree terms with its
suppliers, terms of settlement which are
appropriate for the markets in which they
operate and to abide by such terms where
suppliers have also met their obligations. The
Company had 27 days’ (2005: 67days’)
purchases outstanding at 31 December 2006,
based on amounts invoiced by suppliers during
the year.

Interests in Voting Shares
At 31 May 2007 the Company had been
notified of the following interests of 3% or more
in the Company’s ordinary shares:

% of
Number issued

Name of holder of shares shares

Camden Partners 12,753,499 25.5
Strategic Funds
Boston Scientific 4,431,004 8.9
International BV
Amvescap PLC 4,358,201 8.7
RAB Special Situations
(Master) Fund Ltd 2,270,055 4.5
Aviva plc 1,624,872 3.3

Share Price
The mid-market share price was derived from
the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List
was 51.5 pence on 29 December 2006.

The closing mid-market price ranged from
167.5 pence to 47 pence during the period
from 1 January to 31 December 2006. The
average closing mid-market share price for
this period was 117.8 pence.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM of the Company will be held at
Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP, St Magnus House,
3 Lower Thames Street, London EC3R 6HA
at 11.00 am on 23 July 2007.

Full details of the business to be transacted at
the AGM can be found on the separate Notice
of Meeting accompanying this report.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to
the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

Going Concern
Statements regarding the adoption of the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
financial statements have been made in the
Corporate Governance section on page 24 and
with specific regard to the conditional placing
and subscription of shares in the Finance
Director’s Report on page 17.

By order of the Board

Rhod Jones
Company Secretary
15 June 2007
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Corporate Governance

Introduction
The Board recognises the value of high
standards of Corporate Governance and,
as such, has decided to comply with the
principal disclosure requirements of the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance
(published July 2003) although this is not
mandatory for companies listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of the London
Stock Exchange (AIM). In assessing the
appropriate standards of corporate governance,
the Board takes into account the Company’s
size, stage of development and resources.

Statement of Compliance
During 2006 the Company complied with the
provisions set out in Section I of the Combined
Code with the exception of the following:

1. Senior Independent Non-executive
Director
Michael Stevens was only appointed Senior
Independent Non-executive Director from
21 March 2006.

2. Board Review of the Group’s System
of Internal Controls
Although the results of various financial,
regulatory and manufacturing compliance
control reviews have been reported to the
Board during the year a comprehensive risk
review implemented during the year was not
completed or reported to the Board during
2006.

Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises three
Non-executive Directors and three Executive
Directors, as set out on page 19 of this report.

The roles of Executive Chairman and CEO are
separated being held by Alistair Taylor and
Brian Howlett respectively. Michael Stevens is
the Senior Independent Non-executive Director.
The Board has determined that Martin
Rothman and Michael Stevens are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Richard Johnston is
considered not to be independent as he is a
partner of Camden Partners Holdings LLC
that retained a 26% shareholding in LMT
during 2006.

The holding of share options is deemed by
the Combined Code to be something that
may be relevant to determining whether or
not a Non-executive Director is independent.
After careful consideration, the Board has
determined that the holding of share options
by its Non-executive Directors has no impact
on their independence in character and
judgement. The share options held by the
Non-executive Directors are all subject to share
price performance criteria except for some that
are held by Martin Rothman that are subject to
no performance criteria. Details of all Directors’
share options are shown in the Remuneration
Report on pages 25 to 28.

The existence of a material business relationship
with the Company is another factor relevant to
the determination of a Non-executive Director’s
independence. Professor Martin Rothman is a
consultant cardiologist and cardiac research
and development director at St Bartholomew’s
and the London NHS Trust. To benefit from his
considerable expertise in the field of cardiology
the Company engages him as a medical
advisor under a consultancy agreement dated
28 November 2005. The agreement is for
a fixed term of 24 months at an annual fee
of £30,000. The Board considers that this
arrangement does not in any way affect
Professor Rothman’s independent judgement.

There are matters which are reserved for
decision by the full Board. These include:
matters relating to strategy and management;
Group structure and capital; financial reporting
and controls; internal controls; major contracts;
external communications; Board membership
and other senior appointments; remuneration;
delegation of authority; corporate governance
matters; policies; and various other items such
as political donations, litigation and changes
to Group pension schemes.

Full Board meetings are held bi-monthly or
more frequently if considered necessary. All
members of the Board are supplied in advance
with appropriate information covering matters
which are to be considered.

Board Committees
The Board has established Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees, whose
make-up complies with the requirements of
the Combined Code. The terms of reference
of each Committee are available on request
from the Company Secretary. In accordance
with the Smith Guidance on Board Committees,
no one other than the Committee Chairman
and Committee members receive automatic
invitations to the meetings.

Remuneration Committee
The Combined Code requires that, in the
case of a smaller company, a Remuneration
Committee consists of at least two
Independent Non-executive Directors. During
2006 the Remuneration Committee consisted
of Martin Rothman (Chair) and Nigel Gray who
are both Independent Non-executive Directors,
plus Richard Johnston a Non-executive
Director who is not considered to be
independent. Nigel Gray resigned from the
Board and Remuneration Committee on 9
January 2007. The Remuneration Committee
determines the terms and conditions of service
of Directors, including the remuneration and
grant of options to Directors and employees.
It also reviews the performance of the
Directors and key employees of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee met twice
during 2006.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee has responsibility
for considering the size, structure and
composition of the Board, retirements and
appointments of additional and replacement
Directors, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board. The Combined
Code recommends that a majority of members
of the Nomination Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Company
complies with this recommendation. Michael
Stevens chairs the Nomination Committee and
its other members during 2006 were Richard
Johnston and Nigel Gray. On 9 January 2007
Nigel Gray resigned from the Board and
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee met twice during 2006.

Audit Committee
The Combined Code requires that, in the case
of a smaller company, an Audit Committee
consists of at least two independent Non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee
consists of Martin Rothman and Michael
Stevens who are both Independent Non-
executive Directors, plus Richard Johnston
(Chair) a Non-executive Director who is not
considered to be independent. Michael
Stevens is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and is considered
by the Board to have the requisite relevant
financial experience recommended by the
Combined Code. The Audit Committee has a
primary responsibility for: monitoring the quality
of the Company’s operating procedures,
controls and systems; ensuring that the
financial performance of the Group is properly
measured and reported on; and for reviewing
reports from the Group’s Auditors relating to
the Group’s accounting and internal controls.

The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board with regard
to the appointment, independence, fees
and terms of engagement of the Company’s
Auditors. The Audit Committee has met three
times during 2006 to:

� approve the 2005 audit plan and consider
the independence of the Auditors and
their terms of engagement;

� review the Group’s financial statements,
Corporate Governance statements and
reports from the external Auditors relating to
findings from the audit of the 2005 accounts;

� consider the findings of a review of
key financial processes and controls
performed prior to the implementation
of a new finance system;

� consider points of note from the Interim
Report;

� discuss plans for the transition to IFRS
in 2007; and

� approve the 2006 audit plan and consider
the independence of the Auditors and their
terms of engagement.
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Notwithstanding the Audit Committee’s
involvement the ultimate responsibility for
reviewing and approving the financial
statements in the Interim and Annual Reports
remains with the Board.

Board Performance Evaluation
Directors are subject to election by
shareholders at the first opportunity after their
appointment, and to re-election thereafter at
intervals of no more than three years. The
Nomination Committee undertook a formal
evaluation of the Board and its Committees
during the year and the Remuneration
Committee evaluated the performance of
individual Executive Directors.

Accountability
The Board is responsible for the production of
an Annual Report that presents a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial position and prospects. The Audit
Committee plays a key role in administering this
responsibility.

Internal Controls
The Board has overall responsibility for the
Group’s system of internal controls (including
financial control) and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such a system can only provide
reasonable assurance and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or
loss, as it is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognises the cost of a control
procedure should not exceed the
expected benefits.

During the year the Board has been updated
on the findings of a number of different internal
control reviews by management, external
consultants and regulatory authorities covering
such areas as: financial controls; quality
systems; good manufacturing practice;
IT systems and regulatory compliance.

Furthermore a formal process to identify,
evaluate and manage the significant risks
faced by the Group was initiated in 2006 and
the outcome will be reported to the Board
during 2007.

The Board has considered it inappropriate to
establish an internal audit function, given the
size of the Group.

Key internal controls employed by the
Group include:

� the establishment of an organisation
structure with delegated responsibilities
and lines of accountability;

� the appointment of employees with the
appropriate skills and experience;

� documented quality procedures, which
are periodically reviewed, to ensure the
maintenance of regulatory compliance;

� the monitoring of compliance with Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP), Good
Clinical Practice (GCP) and Good
Laboratory Practice (GLP) by the internal
quality group and/or external consultants;

� the monitoring of Health & Safety policies
and procedures by a Health & Safety
Committee;

� a regular review of the Group’s insurance
policies to ensure that they are appropriate
to the Group’s size, activities and
exposures;

� the definition of authorisation limits,
including matters reserved for the Board;

� appropriate measures to ensure the security
of physical property and computer
information;

� the preparation of detailed operational
budgets and periodic forecasts; and

� the holding of monthly management
meetings attended by the Executive
Directors and senior management at which
reports are presented and discussed with
regard to:
� the Company’s financial performance

against budget or latest estimate; and
� progress by each department on key

business objectives.

Relations with Investors and the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”)
Communications with shareholders are given
a high priority. The Chairman’s Statement and
Chief Executive’s Business Review on pages 6
to 14 include a detailed review of the business
and future developments. A regular dialogue is
planned with institutional shareholders including
presentations after the announcement of
preliminary results at the year end and half year.
The Group’s website is regularly updated with
information on the Group’s activities.

The Senior Independent Non-executive
Director, Michael Stevens may be contacted
by shareholders via the Company website.

The AGM gives all shareholders the opportunity
to communicate directly with the Board.
The Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees will be available at
the AGM on 23 July 2007 to answer questions.
Details of resolutions to be proposed at the
AGM can be found in the notice of meeting,
which accompanies this report.

Review of Corporate Finance Disclosures
The Board have voluntarily complied with the
principal Corporate Governance disclosures
and these have not been formally reviewed by
our auditors. Their report contains no specific
reporting responsibilities in respect of corporate
governance.

Going Concern
The Group is a research and development
based medical devices business which expects
to incur further losses until revenues from sales
and royalty income exceed expenditure on the
product portfolio. The Directors have prepared
projections which, by their nature, are inherently
subject to some uncertainty, particularly in
respect of the timing of revenues, but they
have reasonable expectations that the Group
anticipates to have sufficient cash resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the Group and Company continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.
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Remuneration Report

Introduction
As a company whose shares are traded on
the London Stock Exchange’s AIM market,
the Company is not required to comply
with the disclosure requirements of Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 or
Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985.

The following disclosures are provided on a
voluntary basis as a matter of best practice.

Remuneration Committee
For 2006 the Remuneration Committee
consisted of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Martin Rothman (Chair) and Nigel
Gray along with Richard Johnston who is not
considered to be independent. Nigel Gray
resigned from the Board and Remuneration
Committee on 9 January 2007.

There were two Remuneration Committee
meetings during the year in July and November
and in each case all Committee members
were present.

The remuneration of each Executive Director,
including bonuses and share option grants, is
determined by the Committee, as are the terms
of their service agreements. From time to time,
if it is considered appropriate, the Committee
will commission reports from expert
remuneration consultants. The Committee
does not determine the fees paid to Non-
executive Directors. These are determined
by the Board on the recommendation of the
Chairman and Chief Executive.

In determining the Directors’ remuneration
for 2007, the Committee considered each
individual Director’s performance during the
year and reviewed a survey of remuneration
packages of companies of a similar size and
in the same or similar sectors of industry
as Lombard Medical Technologies PLC.

Policy on Remuneration of Executive Directors
It is the Company’s policy to provide
remuneration packages that are competitive
with those of other companies of a similar
size, complexity and stage of development.
Furthermore, it is the objective of the Board,
advised by the Remuneration Committee, to
provide remuneration packages that will attract,
retain and motivate Executive Directors of the
highest calibre.

The Group recognises the benefits of
performance-related remuneration and both
the exercise of share options and the award
of annual bonuses are linked to various
performance measures. These measures are
balanced between internal measures and share
price performance to achieve maximum
alignment between executive and shareholder
objectives.

The Company’s policy has been to weight
the remuneration package more towards
share options and less towards cash based
incentives than is the case in many comparable
companies in order to conserve cash for
investment in development projects and
to better align executive and shareholder
interests.

Components of the Remuneration Package
The principal components of Executive
Directors’ remuneration packages are basic
salary, a performance-related bonus, medium-
and long-term incentives in the form of share
options, pension contributions and other
benefits. The policy in relation to each of these
components, and key terms of the various
incentive and benefit programmes are
explained further below.

Basic Salary
Base salaries are reviewed annually, taking
into account recommendations on individual
performance and salary levels in comparable
companies.

Performance-Related Bonus
Executive Directors are eligible for an annual
discretionary cash bonus. These bonuses
are limited to a percentage of base salary
for each Director; however the Remuneration
Committee maintain the right to make one-off
bonus awards for exceptional performance.
No performance-related bonuses were
awarded in respect of 2006.

Share Options
Since the Company’s IPO in December 2005
executive options have only been granted
under the rules of the “2005 Plan”. The 2005
Plan is administered and the grant of options
supervised by the Remuneration Committee.
No new options will be granted under the
“Existing Plan” share option scheme previously
operated by the Company prior to the IPO.
Options previously granted under the Existing
Plan are substantially on the same terms as
those noted below for the 2005 Plan.

The exercise of options is normally conditional
on the achievement of a specified performance
target determined by the Remuneration
Committee when the options are granted which
is generally the achievement of key milestones,
for example obtaining CE marks by a specific
date. The exercise price per ordinary share will
not be less than the middle market quotation
averaged over the three dealing days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

Options may normally only be granted within
42 days of the announcement by the Company
of its interim or final results each year. Options
may be granted outside these periods if the
Remuneration Committee considers that
there are sufficiently exceptional circumstances
to justify the grant of options at that time.
No payment is required for the grant of
an option.
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An individual Director’s maximum level of
participation under the Plan will be set by the
Board under advice from the Remuneration
Committee.

The benefits under the “2005 Plan” are not
pensionable.

An option will lapse if the participant ceases
to be employed within the Group otherwise
than due to death and to the extent otherwise
determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion. If a participant dies, the option
may be exercised within twelve months after
his/her death.

In order to secure the recruitment and retention
of high-calibre Non-executive Directors with
the appropriate experience, it is the Company’s
policy to grant Non-executive Directors share
options. The share options held by the Non-
executive Directors are all subject to share
price performance criteria except for some that
are held by Martin Rothman that are subject
to no performance criteria in view of his prior
contribution to the Group.

No options have been granted to Directors
during 2006. Full details of Directors’ interests
in ordinary shares of the Company are set out
below in this report.

Pension arrangements
All employees, including Executive Directors
are invited to participate in a Group Personal
Pension Plan (“GPPP”), which is money-
purchase in nature. Alternatively, the Company
may make contributions to personal pension
schemes held by employees or Executive
Directors equal to those that would have been
made to the GPPP. The only pensionable
element of remuneration is basic salary.
The Company contributes 10% of basic
salary to the pension arrangements of
Executive Directors.

Other Benefits
Benefits in kind for Executive Directors include
the provision of a car allowance, life assurance,
permanent health insurance and private
medical insurance.

Directors’ Service Contracts
The Company’s policy is for Executive Directors
to have contracts of employment with an
indefinite term. This applies to the contracts
of Mr Taylor, Mr Howlett and Mr Hall, which
were effective from 16 November 2005,
15 November 2005 and 7 November 2005
respectively. The contracts are terminable
by either party giving not less than 12 months
notice. The Executive Directors are subject
to certain restrictive covenants for a period
of 12 months following termination of their
employment. All Executive Directors are subject
to re-election at an AGM at intervals of no
more than three years.

Non-executive Directors’ Appointment
and Fees
Non-executive Directors do not have a contract
of service. The Non-executive Directors are
engaged on letters of appointment, dated
7 December 2005, that set out their duties and
responsibilities. Each Non-executive Director is
appointed for an initial period of 12 months that
is then terminable by either party on three
months’ written notice, or such shorter notice
period as agreed between the Non-executive
Director and the Board, to expire at any time
on or after the initial period of 12 months.

Non-executive Directors’ fees are paid in line
with market practice and are reviewed annually.
All Non-executive Directors are currently paid
an annual fee of £35,000.
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Directors’ Interests
The current Directors and those who held office at 31 December 2006 and their interests in the share capital of the Company at 31 December 2005
and 31 December 2006 were as follows:

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

ordinary shares ordinary shares
of 2p each of 2p each

A H Taylor 1,224,257 1,224,257
B Howlett 6,250 –
T R Hall 5,000 5,000
P N Gray 1 50,039 50,039
R M Johnston 2 – –
M T Rothman 19,009 19,009
M A Stevens 12,578 12,578

1) Mr P N Gray resigned on 9 January 2007.
2) Mr R M Johnston has a share in the Camden Partners’ funds which themselves hold 12,753,499 (2005: 12,753,499) 2 pence ordinary shares in the Company.

Certain Directors have subscribed to the placing of ordinary shares at 25 pence per share, together with associated warrant entitlement, to be
approved by shareholders at an EGM convened for 9 July 2007. The number of shares and warrants subscribed and to be issued contingent to
the approval by shareholders for those Directors is as follows:

Warrants to Warrants to
Ordinary shares subscribe subscribe

of 2p each at 31p at 37p

A H Taylor 150,000 22,500 22,500
B Howlett 40,000 6,000 6,000
T R Hall 40,000 6,000 6,000
Camden Partners’ funds (see 2 above) 502,512 75,376 75,376

The warrants to subscribe for new ordinary 2 pence shares, at 31 pence per share are exercisable within three years of the subscription date and those at 37 pence per share
within five years of the subscription date.

There has been no other change in Directors’ interests between 31 December 2006 and the date of this report.

Directors’ Remuneration and Pension Entitlements
The remuneration of individual Directors who served during the year was as follows:

Basic Total Total
salary Benefits emoluments emoluments

and fees in kind Other Pensions 2006 2005
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Executive Directors:
A H Taylor 188 2 – 19 209 278
B Howlett 149 2 – 15 166 22
T R Hall 131 1 – 12 144 22

Non-executive Directors:
P N Gray 1 35 – – – 35 3
R M Johnston 35 – – – 35 16
M T Rothman 2 35 – 30 – 65 158
M A Stevens 35 – – – 35 3

608 5 30 46 689 502

1) Resigned 9 January 2007.
2) Other payments to M T Rothman are in respect to consultancy services relating to his role as medical advisor to the Company.
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The following Directors who served during the year had options outstanding over ordinary shares of 2 pence each at 31 December 2006:

Options Options Options
held at granted/ held at Exercise Date from

1 January (lapsed) 31 December price which first Expiry
Director Plan 2006 during year 2006 (pence) exercisable1 date Note

A H Taylor Anson 41,019 – 41,019 252.0 20 Feb 2002 19 Feb 2011 2
Existing Plan 435,833 – 435,833 14.5 09 Nov 2005 08 Nov 2015 2
Existing Plan 108,958 (108,958) – 14.5
Existing Plan 108,958 – 108,958 14.5 31 Dec 2007 08 Nov 2015 3
Existing Plan 217,916 – 217,916 14.5 30 Jun 2008 08 Nov 2015 3
Existing Plan 217,916 – 217,916 14.5 31 Dec 2009 08 Nov 2015 3

2005 Plan 262,775 (262,775) – 159.0
2005 Plan 262,775 (262,775) – 159.0
2005 Plan 262,775 – 262,775 159.0 30 Jun 2009 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 262,775 – 262,775 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 262,775 – 262,775 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 262,775 – 262,775 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

2,707,250 (634,508) 2,072,742

B Howlett 2005 Plan 157,665 (157,665) – 159.0
2005 Plan 315,330 – 315,330 159.0 31 Dec 2008 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 157,665 – 157,665 159.0 31 Mar 2009 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 157,665 – 157,665 159.0 31 Dec 2010 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 258,571 – 258,571 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 264,877 – 264,877 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 264,877 – 264,877 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

1,576,650 (157,665) 1,418,985

T R Hall 2005 Plan 135,141 (33,786) 101,355 159.0 31 Dec 2006 12 Dec 2015 2
2005 Plan 135,141 – 135,141 159.0 31 Dec 2007 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 135,141 – 135,141 159.0 31 Dec 2008 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 135,141 – 135,141 159.0 31 Dec 2009 12 Dec 2015 3
2005 Plan 135,142 – 135,142 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 135,142 – 135,142 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 135,142 – 135,142 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

945,990 (33,786) 912,204

P N Gray (note 5) 2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

63,066 – 63,066

R M Johnston Existing Plan 108,987 – 108,987 14.5 09 Nov 2005 08 Nov 2015 2

108,987 – 108,987

M T Rothman Existing Plan 544,792 – 544,792 14.5 09 Nov 2005 08 Nov 2015 2
2005 Plan 157,665 – 157,665 159.0 13 Dec 2006 12 Dec 2015 2
2005 Plan 157,665 – 157,665 159.0 13 Dec 2007 12 Dec 2015 2
2005 Plan 105,110 – 105,110 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 105,110 – 105,110 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 105,110 – 105,110 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

1,175,452 – 1,175,452

M A Stevens 2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2007 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2008 12 Dec 2015 4
2005 Plan 21,022 – 21,022 159.0 11 Feb 2009 12 Dec 2015 4

63,066 – 63,066

Notes
1) In certain instances the date is subject to the achievement of performance targets or minimum increases in share price growth (note 3 and 4)
2) Vested
3) Subject to the achievement of individual performance targets.
4) Subject to share price growth.
5) Mr P N Gray resigned as a Director on 9 January 2007 and his options lapsed on that date.
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Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group and the profit or loss of the Group for that year.

In preparing those financial statements the Directors are required to:

� select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

� make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

� state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

� prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking responsible steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud or other irregularities.

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and the Directors have taken all
the steps that ought to have been taken as directors in order to make themsleves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

The maintenance and integrity of the Lombard Medical Technologies PLC website is the responsibility of the Directors, the work carried out by
the auditor does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Tim Hall
Finance Director
15 June 2007

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Lombard Medical Technologies PLC

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements (the ‘‘financial statements’’) of Lombard Medical Technologies PLC for
the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets,
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out therein.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial
statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Strategy Progress Statement,
Chairman’s Statement and Finance Director’s Report that is cross referred from the business review section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. This other
information comprises the Overview statements, Reviews, Management and Governance statements. We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to
any other information.

Basis of Audit Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

� the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state
of the Group’s and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended;

� the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

� the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter – Going Concern
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not qualified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in note 1 to
the financial statements concerning the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Group continues to incur losses and requires further
funding to continue trading. Additional share capital to fund the Group has now either been subscribed or placed and underwritten. Receipt of
the funds is therefore subject only to existing shareholder approval as explained in note 1 and which the Directors are confident will be provided.
The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Company was unable to continue as a going concern.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
East Midlands
15 June 2007
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2005
2006 £’000

Note £’000 as restated

Turnover 2 517 169
Cost of sales (410) (87)

Gross profit 107 82

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (1,869) (893)
Research and development expenses (4,785) (3,157)
Administrative expenses (including exceptional items) (5,085) (6,039)

Operating expenses (including exceptional items) (11,739) (10,089)

Operating loss before goodwill amortisation, share-based compensation and exceptional items (9,646) (6,749)
Share-based compensation expense (727) (223)
Exceptional items 3 – (1,754)
Amortisation of goodwill (1,259) (1,281)

Operating loss 4 (11,632) (10,007)
Bank interest receivable and similar income 569 49
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (6) (1,998)

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (11,069) (11,956)
Taxation 8 646 –

Loss for the financial year 19 (10,423) (11,956)

Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) 9 (21.0) (151.2)

All activity relates to continuing operations.

The Group has no recognised gains and losses other than the loss above and therefore no separate statement of total recognised gains and losses
has been presented.

There is no difference between the loss on ordinary activities before taxation and the loss for the financial year stated above, and their historical cost
equivalents.

Comparative figures have been restated in accordance with FRS 20 “Share-based payment”.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Note £’000 £’000

Fixed assets
Intangible assets 11 907 2,215
Tangible assets 12 362 301
Investments – unquoted 13 2,825 2,825

4,094 5,341

Current assets
Stocks 14 470 318
Debtors 15 1,097 475
Cash at bank and in hand 4,362 16,342

5,929 17,135
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (1,817) (2,893)

Net current assets 4,112 14,242

Net assets 8,206 19,583

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 4,223 4,201
Share premium account 19 25,537 25,420
Other reserves 19 11,118 11,118
Profit and loss account 19 (32,672) (22,976)

Equity shareholders’ funds 8,206 17,763
Equity minority interests 13 – 1,820

Capital employed 8,206 19,583

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:

Tim Hall
Director
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Note £’000 £’000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 – 4
Investments 13 27,688 19,825

27,688 19,829
Current assets
Debtors 15 221 212
Cash at bank and in hand 4,271 16,237

4,492 16,449
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (759) (3,683)

Net current assets 3,733 12,766

Total assets less current liabilities 31,421 32,595

Net assets 31,421 32,595

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 4,223 4,201
Share premium account 19 25,537 25,420
Other reserves 19 11,118 11,118
Profit and loss account 19 (9,457) (8,144)

Equity shareholders’ funds 31,421 32,595

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:

Tim Hall
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Note £’000 £’000

Net cash outflow from operating activities 20 (10,520) (7,637)

Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest received 449 49
Interest paid (6) (452)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from returns on investments and servicing of finance 443 (403)

Taxation received 276 209

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of investments – (231)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets – (423)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (305) (94)

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (305) (748)

Acquisitions and disposals
Payments relating to the distribution to the minority shareholders of Lombard Medical Plc
upon its members’ voluntary liquidation (2,013) –

Net cash outflows from acquisitions and disposals (2,013) –

Net cash outflow before financing (12,119) (8,579)

Financing
Issue of ordinary shares 157 26,181
Issue of preference shares – 3,150
Share issue expenses (18) (2,121)
Loans advanced – 1,550
Repayment of loans – (3,342)

Net cash inflow from financing 139 25,418

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period 21 (11,980) 16,839
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1 Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, the Companies Act 1985, and in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom Accounting Standards. A summary of the more important Group accounting policies follows.

Basis of Preparation – Financing
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future.

The Group is committed to meeting employment and certain operational costs, as well as supporting its main trading subsidiaries through
intercompany funding in order to pursue its objectives. Forecasts have been prepared taking into account the requirements to complete product
development including US trials and to achieve significant levels of commercial sales within Europe and later the US markets. It is projected that
current cash balances will be absorbed by July 2007 and the Directors have therefore been following plans to raise additional equity to enable
the Group to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. Shares have now been placed and £2.6 million subscribed, subject to shareholder
approval in accordance with the articles, and the placing underwritten in respect of £4.8 million of proceeds. Receipt of the funds is therefore
subject only to the shareholder approval which is expected to be obtained on 9 July 2007.

The forecasts indicate that these funds along with the Company’s existing funds and expected credit facilities will be sufficient to meet its trading
requirements for a further year. However, for the Company to be able to continue with its current business plan and in the absence of proceeds
from the sale of its remaining trade investment, the Company will need to raise further funds in the next 12 months in order to take the business
to the point where it becomes cash generative. The Directors believe that shareholder approval will be provided for the current placing and
subscription of shares and that the Company will be able to raise further funds during the next year either through the issue of securities and/or
the sale of non-core assets and hence regard it as appropriate that these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Change of Accounting Policy
The Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard 20 “Share-based payment” which is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2006. A charge arises in respect of the fair value of share options and warrant instruments, and the comparative figures have been
restated for the application of this standard.

Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings.
The results of acquired undertakings are included in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account from the date control passes. Intra-Group sales
and profits are eliminated on consolidation.

No minority interest is shown in the Group loss where there is no obligation for the minority shareholders to fund the deficit.

Investments
Investments are held at actual or deemed cost (where acquired as part of a business acquisition) and provision is made for any impairment
in value.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost. Such investments include both investments in shares issued by the subsidiary and other
parent entity interests that in substance form part of the parent entity’s investment in the subsidiary. These include investments in the form of
interest-free loans which have no fixed repayment terms and have been provided to subsidiaries as an addiitional source of long-term capital.

Fixed Assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses of acquisition. Depreciation is calculated so
as to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated economic lives.
The principal economic lives used for this purpose are:

Plant and equipment three to ten years
Office equipment three to five years

Notes to the Financial Statements
as at 31 December 2006
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1 Accounting Policies continued

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of identifiable net assets
acquired. Goodwill arising on acquisitions is carried forward as an asset and amortised over its estimated useful economic life on a straight-line
basis. Intellectual property and licence fee payments made to third parties are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of
the patents on the related products or processes. The principal economic lives used for this purpose are:

Goodwill four years
Intellectual property and licences ten years

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill
The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment where there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. First-year
impairment reviews are conducted for acquired goodwill and intangible assets. Impairment is determined by reference to the higher of net
realisable value and value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted cash flows. Indicative Directors’ estimate of value has been used
in these financial statements due to the considerable uncertainties attaching to future cash flows. Included within the Directors’ estimate of value
are external factors, including subscriptions by other external investors. Any provision for impairment is charged in the profit and loss account for
the year.

Foreign Currencies
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rates of exchange for the year. Differences on exchange
arising from the retranslation of the opening net investment in subsidiary companies, and from the translation of the results of those companies
at average rate, are taken to reserves and, where material, are reported in the statement of total recognised gains and losses. All other exchange
differences are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Operating Leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and includes transport and handling
costs. In the case of manufactured products, cost includes all direct expenditure including production overheads. Where necessary, provision is
made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocks. Items purchased for use in research and development are stocked and expensed when used.

Revenue Recognition
Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents income from the sale of medical devices and from the licensing of technology. Medical
device income is recognised on the supply of goods to a customer net of any provision where the customer has a right of return. Income arising
from a licence agreement is recognised when receivable under the terms of the contract and when all related obligations have been fulfilled.

Research and Development
Expenditure on research and development including clinical trials is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred. Tangible fixed assets used
for research and development are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s policy.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised in the profit and loss account so as to match them with the expenditure to which they are intended to contribute.

Pensions
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for some of its employees. Contributions payable during the year are charged to the
profit and loss account.

Taxation
Research and development tax credits resulting from the utilisation of research and development losses to reclaim payroll taxes paid are only
recorded on receipt of confirmation of claims.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Accounting Policies continued

Deferred Taxation
Deferred taxation is provided on an undiscounted basis at the anticipated tax rates on timing differences arising from the inclusion of items of
income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included in financial statements. Liabilities are
fully provided and assets are recognised to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be realised.

Financial and Capital Instruments
Capital instruments are included at cost, adjusted for discount accretion or premium amortisation. Interest/appropriations thereon and the
premium or discount, where relevant, is taken to the profit and loss account so as to produce a constant rate of return over the period to the date
of expected redemption. Finance costs associated with the issue of capital instruments are capitalised/taken to the share premium account for
equity instruments and written off to the profit and loss account over the period to the expected date of redemption.

The Group adopted Financial Reporting Standard 25 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” from 1 January 2005. This resulted in
the non-equity interests represented by preference shares and related unpaid appropriations being reclassified to liabilities during 2005 (until their
conversion to ordinary shares) and dividends or appropriations classified as elements of the interest charge.

Share-based Payments
The Group operates a number of executive share option schemes and has issued a warrant instrument in lieu of professional fees related to the
placing of preference shares. In accordance with FRS 20 “Share-based payment”, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to their fair value at the date at which they are granted, with fair value determined using the Hull-White trinomial model. The cost of
equity-settled transactions is recognised over the period until the award vests. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied. At each reporting date, the cumulative expense recognised for equity-based transactions reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of the Directors at that date, will ultimately vest.

2 Segmental Reporting
2005

2006 £’000
Business Analysis £’000 as restated

Turnover
Cardiovascular devices 473 169
Polymer coatings 44 –

517 169

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Cardiovascular devices (7,292) (5,561)
Polymer coatings (410) (576)
Central costs (3,930) (3,870)

Operating loss (11,632) (10,007)
Net finance income/(cost) 563 (1,949)

(11,069) (11,956)

Net Assets
Cardiovascular devices 1,033 1,823
Polymer coatings 156 241

1,189 2,064
Central 2,655 1,177
Net cash 4,362 16,342

8,206 19,583

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Segmental Reporting continued

Analyses by business are based on the Group’s management structure. Turnover between segments is immaterial.

Central net assets comprise assets, partially offset by liabilities that cannot practically be divided between the segments. These liabilities and
assets are:

2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Investments 2,825 2,825
Tax receivable – –
Central liabilities (170) (1,648)

Central net assets 2,655 1,177

Turnover and activity arises as follows:

2005
2006 £’000

Segmental analysis by country of origin £’000 as restated

Turnover
UK 488 169
USA 29 –

517 169

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
UK (10,623) (11,956)
USA (446) –

(11,069) (11,956)

Net assets/(liabilities)
UK 8,660 19,583
USA (454) –

8,206 19,583

Geographical analysis is based on the country in which the customer is located is as follows:

2006 2005
Turnover by Destination £’000 £’000

United Kingdom and Europe 488 160
United States of America 29 9

517 169

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3 Exceptional Items
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Corporate finance and associated corporate advisory expenses – (470)
Bank facility forebearance and arrangement fees – (555)
Board and other restructuring costs – (729)

– (1,754)

On 13 December 2005 the Company was listed on AIM. There was an associated placing of 16,466,359 new ordinary shares at the time of
the listing. Costs directly related to the fund raising such as those of the Company’s Nominated Advisor and Broker were set against the share
premium account. However, costs relating to advice given on running a public company, market research and other costs linked to the IPO but
not directly related to the fund raising were included in the profit and loss account for 2005 as an exceptional item along with bank fees related
to the bank’s continued support during the period up to receipt of the placing proceeds.

In November 2005, Stephen Terry and John Kerslake resigned from the Board. Their compensation for loss of office was included as an
exceptional item in 2005 along with the termination costs of several sales force personnel.

4 Operating Loss
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Operating loss is stated after charging:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 244 136
Amortisation of licences 49 35
Amortisation of goodwill 1,259 1,281
Research and development expenditure 4,785 3,157
Foreign exchange loss 108 49
Operating lease rentals
– Motor vehicles 54 22
– Land and buildings 181 207
– Other assets 1 8
Auditors’ remuneration 50 35

Amounts paid to the Company’s Auditors in respect of non-audit fees for work provided to the Company and its subsidiaries, amounted to £nil
(2005: £265,000) in respect of transaction related services, £nil (2005: £19,000) for non-statutory audit work, £34,000 in respect of the voluntary
liquidation of a subsidiary and £41,000 in respect of tax services (2005: £27,000). All of these were charged as operating expenses except for
those in respect of transaction-related services in 2005 of which £132,500 was set against the share premium account and £132,500 included
in exceptional items.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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5 Directors’ Emoluments
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Fees 170 228
Salary 468 445
Bonuses – 100
Pension contributions 46 43
Benefits in kind 5 29
Compensation for loss of office – 457

689 1,302

Fees include £30,000 (2005: £143,000) paid to one of the Non-executive Directors (2005: two) for consultancy services, principally as a medical
adviser to the Company but also in relation to the IPO in 2005.

2005 Bonuses comprise a one-off bonus paid to the Executive Chairman in relation to the IPO in December 2005.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is set by the Remuneration Committee. Full details of the Directors’ remuneration and options are
contained in the Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 28.

6 Employee Information

The average monthly number of people (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group and by the Company.

Company Group
2006 2005 2006 2005

By activity Number Number Number Number

Selling , marketing and distribution – – 15 12
Research and development – – 41 24
Business development and administration 6 6 17 11

6 6 73 47

Staff costs for the above persons were:

2005 2005
2006 £’000 2006 £’000
£’000 as restated £’000 as restated

Wages and salaries 586 945 2,896 2,067
Social security costs 104 84 344 242
Other pensions costs 91 79 227 130
Share-based compensation expense 727 223 727 223

1,508 1,331 4,194 2,662

Notes to the Financial Statements
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7 Interest Payable and Similar Charges
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Bank interest payable – 188
Camden Partners loan interest – 124
Lion Capital Partners loan interest – 141
Other interest payable 1 –
Minority share of interest payable intra-Group 5 56
Preference shares:
Dividend at 8% on amount paid up – 912
Appropriations – 577

6 1,998

8 Taxation on Loss on Ordinary Activities

The net credit of £646,000 (2005: £nil) relates to the utilisation of UK tax losses from prior year research and development expenditure to reclaim
payroll taxes paid of £654,000 less overseas taxation payable of £8,000.

Taxation losses carried forward at the end of the year amounted to approximately £33 million and the unrecognised deferred tax asset at 30% is
approximately £9.9 million. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these losses as the Directors consider it is, as yet, uncertain
whether the losses will be utilised. Tax losses would be utilised in future periods against trading profits or the reclaiming of payroll taxes (at a lower
effective rate).

The current tax credit of £nil is lower than the standard UK corporation rate of 30% applied to the loss for the period. The differences are
explained below:

2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Loss before tax for the period at 30% (3,321) (3,587)
Additional deduction for research and development expenditure (200) (200)
Amounts not deductible for tax purposes including amortisation of goodwill, share-based compensation and
preference share dividends 422 1,097
Losses carried forward 3,099 2,690

– –

Notes to the Financial Statements
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9 Loss per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares.
The diluted earnings per ordinary share are identical to those used for the basic earnings per ordinary share as the exercise of share options and
conversion of preference shares in prior periods would have the effect or reducing the loss per ordinary share and are therefore not dilutive.

Reconciliations of the losses and weighted average number of shares used on the calculations are set out below:

2006 2005

Loss for the financial year £’000 (10,423) (11,956)

Weighted average number of shares (’000) 49,667 7,906

Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) (21.0) (151.2)

In July 2007 the Company expects the placing and subscription of 29,532,660 ordinary shares at 25 pence per share to be approved by
shareholders raising £7.4 million before expenses. In connection with this placing and subscription the Company will issue warrants to subscribe
to a total of 8.9 million shares, half at an exercise price of 31 pence per share within three years of the subscription date and half at an exercise
price of 37 pence per share within five years of the subscription date.

10 Losses of Holding Company

Of the loss for the financial year, a loss of £2,040,000 (2005: £5,516,000) is dealt with in the accounts of the Company. The Directors have taken
advantage of the exemption available under section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and not presented the Company’s profit and loss account.

11 Intangible Assets
Intellectual

Goodwill on Property and
Acquisition Licences Total

Group £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 4,071 485 4,556

Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 2,292 49 2,341
Charge for the year 1,259 49 1,308

At 31 December 2006 3,551 98 3,649

Net book value
At 31 December 2006 520 387 907

At 31 December 2005 1,779 436 2,215

The company has no intangible fixed assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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12 Tangible Fixed Assets
Plant and Equipment
Group Company
£’000 £’000

Cost
At 1 January 2006 1,129 18
Additions 305 –

At 31 December 2006 1,434 18

Depreciation
At 1 January 2006 828 14
Charge for the year 244 4

At 31 December 2006 1,072 18

Net book value
At 31 December 2006 362 –

At 31 December 2005 301 4

13 Investments
Loans Investments

to in
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total

Company £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost
At 1 January 2006 18,015 1,810 19,825
Advances in year 7,863 – 7,863

At 31 December 2006 25,878 1,810 27,688

The loans to the subsidiaries are interest free and considered long term.

Notes to the Financial Statements



Lombard Medical Technologies PLC
Annual Report 200644

13 Investments continued

Interests in Group undertakings
The following subsidiary undertakings have been included in the Group consolidation. All interests are held directly in the form of ordinary shares.

Name of undertaking Principal area of activity Country of incorporation

Anson Medical Limited Medical implants Great Britain
PolyBioMed Limited Polymer biomaterials Great Britain
LionMedical Limited Investment holding company Great Britain
Lombard Medical Technologies Inc Medical implants USA
Endostapler Limited Dormant Great Britain

The above companies operate principally in their country of incorporation. All interests are held by the Company.

On 28 February 2006 Lombard Medical Plc in which the Company held a 94% shareholding was placed in members’ voluntary liquidation
subsequent to which a payment of £2,013,000 arose relating to the distribution to the minority shareholders and associated fees of which
it is expected that approximately £80,000 will be returned to the Company.

Unquoted
Investments

Group £’000

Cost at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 3,693

Impairment at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 (868)

Net book value at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 2,825

At 31 December 2006 the Group held 3.2% (2005: 8%) of the ordinary share capital of EndoArt SA, a company incorporated in Switzerland and
10.6% (2005: 10.6%) of the ordinary share capital of Vascular Concepts Holdings Limited (investment of £2,563,000), a company incorporated in
the Isle of Man. These are both companies engaged in the development of medical devices. The investments are not readily realisable, being
unquoted, and values can only be indicative of prospects given the early stage of their development and the inherent uncertainties in their further
progress towards product or technology sales, on which the future value depends.

EndoArt SA recorded a loss of £2,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005 and had net assets of £703,000 at that date. In 2006 it raised
£5,922,000 of new equity which the Group did not subscribe to resulting in its shareholding being diluted to 3.2%. The total cost of the Group’s
investment in EndoArt SA is £1,130,000 which has been impaired to a net £262,000.

The audited consolidated financial accounts of Vascular Concepts record a profit of £127,000 for the year ended 31 March 2006 and net
assets of £3,808,000 at that date. The audit opinion on these financial statements was qualified in respect of a limitation of scope relating
to a US subsidiary.

Post Balance Sheet Divestment of EndoArt SA Shareholding
On 22 February 2007 EndoArt SA was acquired by Allergan Inc. for $97 million, net of excess cash. The Group’s share of the consideration is
$3.15 million of which the Group received $2.75 million (£1.4 million) on 23 February 2007 with the remaining $0.40 million being held in escrow
until February 2009 pending any potential warranty claims made by Allergan under the terms of the purchase agreement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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14 Stocks
2006 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Raw materials and bought-out components 330 – 305 –
Finished goods 140 – 13 –

470 – 318 –

The 2005 figures have been re-analysed to agree to new classifications used by management.

15 Debtors
2006 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 222 – 32 –
Other debtors 407 139 385 167
Tax recoverable 378 – – –
Prepayments and accrued income 90 82 58 45

1,097 221 475 212

16 Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
2006 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts owed to subsidiary – – – 1,820
Trade creditors 792 99 1,017 575
Other taxation and social security 172 43 255 148
Other creditors 55 – 44 1
Accruals and deferred income 798 617 1,577 1,139

1,817 759 2,893 3,683

Pension contributions of £41,000 (2005: £51,000) are included for the Group in accruals and deferred income.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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17 Financial Instruments

Treasury Policy
The Group has financed its operations by a mixture of shareholders’ funds, bank and other borrowings and loan notes, as required. The Group’s
objective has been to obtain sufficient funding to meet development activities and initial commercialisation costs until the Group becomes
profitable. During 2006 and for the foreseeable future the Group’s objective in using financial instruments is to maximise the returns on funds held
on deposit and to minimise exchange-rate risk where appropriate.

The Group currently has no derivatives and it is not the Group policy to actively trade in derivatives.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group currently has no outstanding loans and invests its surplus funds in money market and short-term bank deposits. In the past it has used
a variety of fixed rate loans and floating rate debt as funding sources. The Group does not have a definitive stance on the balance between fixed
and floating rate debt.

The Group has no financial liabilities except for short-term liabilities which have been excluded from disclosures as permitted by FRS13 (2005: £nil).

Liquidity Risk
The Group prepares periodic working capital forecasts for the foreseeable future, allowing an assessment of the cash requirements of the Group,
to manage liquidity risk. The Group also ensures that sufficient funds are available on 24 hours’ notice to fund the Group’s immediate needs.

Currency Risk
The Group is currently exposed to limited currency risk through foreign currency transactions. As the Group’s level of foreign currency transactions
increases the currency risk will be managed by holding foreign currency deposits and seeking to hedge significant transactional exposures.

Credit Risk
The Group places its deposits only with established financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Short-term Debtors
Short-term debtors have been excluded from the following disclosure as permitted by FRS 13.

Interest Rate and Currency Risk of Financial Assets

2006 2005
Cash At Bank Cash At Bank
and In Hand Other and In Hand Other

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Floating rate – USD 279 – 1,485 –
Floating Rate – EUR 22 – – –
Floating rate – Sterling 4,061 2,825 14,857 2,825

4,362 2,825 16,342 2,825

The cash and bank balances earn interest at the prevailing short-term market interest rates.

The other floating rate financial assets represent the unquoted investments.
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17 Financial Instruments continued

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Primary financial investments held are as follows:

2006 2005
Book Fair Book Fair
Value Value Value Value
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash deposits 4,362 4,362 16,342 16,342
Unquoted investments 2,825 2,825 2,825 2,825

7,187 7,187 19,167 19,167

The fair value of the unquoted investments has been established from the book value written down to the estimated recoverable amount (see note 13).

18 Called Up Share Capital
2006 2006 2005 2005

Number Nominal Number Nominal
of Value of Value

Shares £’000 Shares £’000

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 2p each 338,867,439 6,777 338,867,439 6,777
Deferred shares of 0.862 p each 373,857,388 3,223 373,857,388 3,223

712,724,827 10,000 712,724,827 10,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 2p each 49,983,118 1,000 48,893,590 978
Deferred shares of 0.862 p each 373,857,388 3,223 373,857,388 3,223

423,840,506 4,223 422,750,978 4,201

New share capital issued during the period was as follows:

NominalConsideration
Number of Value or Fair Value

Shares £’000 £’000

Ordinary shares of 2 pence each
Issue of shares on exercise of share options 1,089,582 22 157

Ordinary Shares
Voting: in a show of hands every holder has one vote and in a poll each share has one vote.
Dividends: each ordinary share has the right to receive dividends.
Return on capital: each ordinary share has the right to share in a liquidation of the Company’s assets.

Deferred Shares
Voting: deferred shares do not entitle the holders to attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company.
Dividends: deferred shares do not entitle the holder to receive any dividend or other distribution.
Return on capital: on a winding up the holders of deferred shares are only entitled to the amount paid up on each deferred share after the holders
of the ordinary shares have received the sum of £1 million for each ordinary share.

Notes to the Financial Statements



Lombard Medical Technologies PLC
Annual Report 200648

18 Called Up Share Capital continued

Warrants
The Company entered into a warrant instrument on 7 December 2005 pursuant to which, in lieu of fees of £158,000 related to the placing of
preference shares, the Company has created warrants in favour of Nomura Code Securities to subscribe for 144,900 ordinary shares at an
exercise price of 14.49 pence per ordinary share exercisable within seven years of the Company’s admission to AIM. The cost has been treated as
a preference share issue cost and credited to other reserves.

Options
The Company’s Directors, officers, employees hold options under the Lombard Medical Technologies PLC Share Option Plan, known as the
“Existing Plan”, the Lombard Medical Technologies PLC Share Option Plan (2005), known as the “2005 Plan” and under the Anson Unapproved
Share Option Plan 2000, known as the “Anson Plan”, to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company as shown below. The Directors’ interests
in these options are detailed in the Remuneration Report along with an outline of the terms and conditions attaching to the options.

Anson Plan Existing Plan 2005 Plan Total Options

Shares under option at 1 January 2006 163,845 4,358,352 6,506,309 11,028,506
Options granted – – 157,665 157,665
Options exercised – (1,089,582) – (1,089,582)
Options lapsed/cancelled (69,424) (756,652) (1,734,411) (2,560,487)

At 31 December 2006 94,421 2,512,118 4,929,563 7,536,102

Exercise price per share (pence) 252 14.5 112 to 159
Weighted average exercise price per share (pence) 252 14.5 158
Weighted average market share price at date of exercise (pence) 146.0

The outstanding options at 31 December 2006 were granted as follows:

Exercise
Price Exercise 2006 2005

Date of Grant (pence) Period Numbers Numbers

11 April 2001 252 2002-2011 94,421 163,845
8 June 2004 14.5 2004-2014 – 108,958
9 November 2005 14.5 2005-2015 2,512,118 4,249,394
13 December 2005 159 2005-2015 4,781,752 6,506,309
14 July 2006 112 2006-2016 147,811 –

7,536,102 11,028,506

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 20 and has only applied FRS 20 to options granted after 7 November 2002.

The fair value of the options was determined using the Hull-White binomial pricing model. The share-based compensation charge for the year is
£727,000 (2005: £223,000). The main assumptions used in the fair value calculations are noted in the tables below.

Year of grant
2005 Plan 2006 2005

Weighted average share price of grants during the year 112.0p 159.0p
Expected volatility 30-60% 25-30%
Option life 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends Nil Nil
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 4.2-4.5%
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18 Called Up Share Capital continued
Year of grant

Existing Plan 2006 2005

Weighted average share price of grants during the year – 14.5p
Expected volatility – 30-60%
Option life – 10 years
Expected dividends – Nil
Risk-free interest rate – 4.3-4.5%

Expected volatility has been calculated by reference to the Company’s historic share price and industry norms. The risk-free interest rate is
calculated by reference to UK government bonds. Expectation of the cancellation of options has been considered in determining the fair value
expense charge in the income statement.

Post Balance Sheet Share Issues
In July 2007 the Company expects the placing and subscription of 29,532,660 ordinary shares at 25 pence per share to be approved by
shareholders raising £7.4 million before expenses. In connection with this placing and subscription the Company will issue warrants to subscribe
to a total of 8.9 million shares, half at an exercise price of 31 pence per share within three years of the subscription date and half at an exercise
price of 37 pence per share within five years of the subscription date.

19 Capital and Reserves
Called up Share Profit and

share premium Other Loss
capital account Reserves Account Total

Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2006 4,201 25,420 11,118 (22,976) 17,763
New ordinary share capital issued 22 135 – – 157
Expenses of share issues – (18) – – (18)
Share based compensation expense – – – 727 727
Loss for the year – – – (10,423) (10,423)

At 31 December 2006 4,223 25,537 11,118 (32,672) 8,206

Called up Share Profit and
share premium Other Loss
capital account Reserves Account Total

Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2006 4,201 25,420 11,118 (8,144) 32,595
New ordinary share capital issued 22 135 – – 157
Expenses of share issues – (18) – – (18)
Share based compensation expense – – – 727 727
Loss for the year – – – (2,040) (2,040)

At 31 December 2006 4,223 25,537 11,118 (9,457) 31,421
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20 Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Operating loss (11,632) (10,007)
Amortisation of goodwill 1,259 1,281
Depreciation and amortisation of licences 293 171
Share based compensation expense 727 223
Increase in stocks (152) (171)
Increase in debtors (244) (267)
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors (771) 1,133

(10,520) (7,637)

21 Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Funds
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

(Decrease)/increase in cash in period (11,980) 16,839
Net cash movement in loans and preference share liabilities – (1,200)

Changes in net cash resulting from cash flows (11,980) 15,639
Non-cash changes:
Conversion of loans to equity – 1,550
Reclassification of preference share interests as liabilities – (11,707)
Conversion of preference shares to ordinary shares – 14,699

Movement in net funds in period (11,980) 20,181
Net funds/(debt) at 1 January 16,342 (3,839)

Net funds at 31 December 4,362 16,342

Preference share net proceeds were reclassified to liabilities in accordance with FRS 25 “Financial instrument: disclosures and presentation” and
converted to ordinary shares during 2005.

22 Reconciliation of Movements in Group Shareholders’ Funds
2006 2005
£’000 £’000

Loss for the financial period (10,423) (11,956)
Share based compensation expense credited to reserves 727 223
Reclassification of preference share interests as liabilities under FRS25 – (10,376)
Conversion of preference shares and loan to ordinary shares – 16,250
Warrant reserve created – 158
New share capital issued, including premium 157 26,181
Expenses of share issues (18) (1,964)

Net change in shareholders’ funds (9,557) 18,516
Opening shareholders’ funds 17,763 (753)

Closing shareholders’ funds 8,206 17,763
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23 Related Party Disclosures

Liabilities
There were no liabilities outstanding with related parties in 2006, however in the prior period:

Camden Partners LLP, a major shareholder owning 26% of the Company’s shares at 31 December 2006, advanced a total of $2.7 million to the
Company. Interest on this advance of $218,671 was paid in December 2005 and the capital element was settled through the issue of 975,927
ordinary shares of 2 pence each on 13 December 2005.

A loan of £1,942,000 advanced by Lion Capital Partners plc (‘LCP’) was repaid on 14 December 2005 together with interest of £235,000.
LCP was a shareholder and had common directors.

Agreements
In October 2005 the Company and Boston Scientific B.V. entered into an agreement whereby Boston Scientific B.V. was granted a right of first
refusal in respect of a sale of any of the shares in Anson Medical Limited or the business or assets of Anson Medical Limited. This right will expire
on the earlier of: Boston Scientific B.V reducing its holding in Company shares by more than 25% of those held on 13 December 2005; and 90
days after receipt of FDA approval for Aorfix™ endovascular stent graft for the treatment of AAA.

An amendment to a Distribution Agreement with Boston Scientific Limited was signed in October 2005 granting Boston Scientific an extension to
30 August 2006 to its option to take-up distribution rights over the Company’s AAA and TAA products outside the USA. This option has now lapsed.

24 Financial Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2006 the Group was committed to make the following payments during the next year in respect of operating leases:

2006 2005
Land and 2006 Land and 2005
Buildings Other Buildings Other

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Expiring within one year 70 – 36 1
Expiring between two and five years inclusive 144 49 125 –

214 49 161 1

25 Post Balance Sheet Events

The Company expects the placing and subscription of 29,532,660 ordinary shares of 2 pence each to be approved by shareholders at an
Extraordinary General Meeting on 9 July 2007 raising £6.6 million net of expenses of £0.8 million.

26 Ultimate Controlling Party

The Directors consider that there is no one ultimate controlling party of the Company.
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Glossary of Terms

abdominal aortic aneurysm or AAA
Balloon-like enlargement of the aorta in the
region of the abdomen (occurring in the length
of the aorta between the diaphragm and iliac
bifurcation).

aneurysm
Balloon-like enlargement of a blood vessel
resulting from a weakening in the vessel wall.

aorta
The main artery of the body from which all
others derive.

bifurcated
A structure that branches into two separate
similar structures.

CE Mark
The manufacturer’s declaration, following
appropriate assessment by a CE Notified Body,
that the product conforms to the essential
requirements of the relevant European health,
safety and environmental protection
legislations. Once awarded, the CE Mark
permits the marketing of the product
throughout the European Union.

co-morbidities
The presence of two or more diseases in an
individual patient.

contra-indicated
The prevention of the application of a given
medical treatment option due to the medical
history or status of the patient.

drug eluting
Controlled release of one or more drugs by a
chemical complex, such as a polymer coating.

endoleak
Leakage of blood beyond the stent graft into
the space between the outer stent wall and
the wall of the blood vessel.

endostapler
A stapling instrument used endoscopically for
the purposes of fixing tissues to other tissues
or devices.

endothelial cells
Cells from the lining of blood vessels.

endovascular stent graft
A stent graft that is deployed through a
minimally invasive procedure, accessing the
target vessel through the femoral arteries.

FDA
US Food and Drug Administration.

femoral artery
A large artery that extends from the external
iliac artery in the region of the lower abdomen
and descends into the thigh.

iliac arteries
A pair of large arteries branching off the aorta in
the region of the lower abdomen which supply
blood to the pelvis and legs.

Investigational Device Exemption or IDE
An approval by the FDA for a device that
permits its use in a clinical study to collect the
safety and effectiveness data required for an
application to market the device.

nitinol
An alloy of nickel and titanium that, once initially
set in a defined shape, returns to that shape
following distortion.

stent graft
A tubular device made of fabric attached to
an expandable metal structure. Once the metal
is expanded, the device forms a rigid tube.

thoracic aortic aneurysm or TAA
Balloon-like enlargement of the aorta in the
region of the thorax (occurring in the length
of the aorta between the heart and the
diaphragm).

uni-iliac stent graft
A stent graft that includes only a single iliac
branch. This is a non-branching tube device
that occludes one of the iliac arteries.
Consequently, the implant procedure includes
grafting from one femoral artery to the other to
restore full circulation.

urology
The branch of medicine that deals with the
urinary tract and the urogenital tract.
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